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ARTICLES OF MERGER
Merger Sheet

MERGING:

RADIO METRIX INC., a Florida corporation, V23208

INTO

SMARTGATE/RADIOMETRIX ACQUISITION CORP.. a Nevada entity not
qualified in Florida

File date: February 26, 2002 .
Corporate Specialist: Cheryl Coulliette

Division of Corporations - P.Q. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314




ARTICLES OF MERGER

(Profit Corporations)

The following articles of merger are submitted in accordance with the Florida Business Corporation Act,

pursuant to section 607.1105, F.S.

First: The name and jurisdiction of the surviving corporation:
Jurisdiction

Name
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. Nevada

Second: The name and jurisdiction of each merging corporation: Eg-, a2
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Radio Metrix Inc. Florida S T
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Third: The Plan of Merger is attached.
Fourth: The merger shall become effective on the date the Articles of Merger are filed with the Florida

Department of State
(Enter a specific date. NOTE: An effective date cannot be prior to the date of filing or more

OR / /
than 90 days in the future.)

Fifth: Adoption of Merger by surviving corporation - (COMPLETE ONLY ONE STATEMENT) -
The Plan of Merger was adopted by the shareholders of the surviving corporation on February ,

2002.
The Plan of Merger was adopted by the board of directors of the surviving corporation on

and sharcholder approval was not required.

Sixth: Adoption of Merger by merging corporation(s) (COMPLETE ONLY ONE STATEMENT) _
The Plan of Merger was adopied by the shareholders of the merging corporation(s) on February £ |

2002.
The Plan of Merger was adopted by the board of directors of the merging corporation(s) on
and shareholder approval was not required.

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)




Seventh: SIGNATURES FOR EACH CORPORATION

Name of Corporation Tvped or Printed Name of Individual & Title

Radio Metrix Inc. MM Stephen A. Michael, President

SmartGate/RadioMetrix s
Acquisition Corp. Mﬁg‘ Edmund C. King_ President
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AGREEMENT OF MERGER AND PLAN OF REORGANIZATION

BY AND AMONG
SmartGate Inc.

SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.

Radio Metrix Inc.




AGREEMENT OF MERGER AND PLAN OF REORGANIZATION

This AGREEMENT OF MERGER AND PLAN OF REORGANIZATION (this “Agreement”) is made
and entered into as of February _é- 2002 by and among SmartGate Inc., a Nevada corporation
(“SmartGate”), SmartGate/RadioMetrix  Acquisition Corp., a Nevada corporation
(“SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.” or the “Sub”) and RadioMetrix Inc., a Florida
corporation (“RadioMetrix™).

RECITALS

A. The Board of Directors of each of RadioMetrix, SmartGate and
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. believe it is in the best interests of each company and
their respective stockholders that RadioMetrix and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.
combine into a single company through the statutory merger of RadioMetrix with and into
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. (the “Merger”) and, in furtherance thereof, have
approved the Merger,

B. The parties entered into a Letter of Intent, a copy of which is attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit “A”. '

C. RadioMetrix, SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. desire to
- make certain representations and warranties and other agreements in connection with the Merger.

D, The parties intend, by executing this Agreement, to adopt a plan of reorganization
within the meaning of Section 368 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code™).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, promises and representations
set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
THE MERGER

1.1 The Merger. At the Effective Time (as defined in Section 1.2) and subject to and
upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement and Florida and Nevada Law, RadioMetrix
shall be merged with and into SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp., the separate corporate
existence of RadioMetrix shall cease and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. shall
continue as the surviving corporation. SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp., as the
surviving corporation after the Merger is hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Surviving
Corporation.”

1.2 Effective Time. As promptly as practicable after: (i) the satisfaction or waiver of
the conditions set forth in Article V; and (ii) the Closing Date as hereinafter defined, the parties
hereto shall cause the Merger to be consummated by filing Articles of Merger (the “Articles of
Merger”) with the Secretary of State of the States of Florida and Nevada, in such form as
required by, and executed in accordance with the relevant provisions of Florida Law and Nevada
Law (“Filings”) and the date upon which the last of the two Filings is completed shall be the
“Effective Time”. The closing of the transactions contemplated hereby (the “Closing”) shall take
place on or before February 25 , 2002, at 10:00 a.m. at the offices of RadioMetrix’ counsel (the
“Closing Date”), unless otherwise extended by mutual agreement of the parties,
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1.3 Effect of the Merger. At the Effective Time, the effect of the Merger shall be as
provided under Florida Law and Nevada Law. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, .
and subject thereto, at the Effective Time all the property, rights, privileges, powers and
franchises of RadioMetrix and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. shall vest in the
Surviving Corporation, and all debts, [abilities and duties of RadioMetrdx and
SmartGate/RadioMeirix Acquisition Corp. shall become the debts, liabilities and duties of the
Surviving Corporation. Further, at the Effective Time, SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition
Corp. shall become a wholly owned subsidiary of SmartGate and the shareholders of
RadioMetrix, immediately before the Effective Time, shall become holders of shares of
SmartGate Common Stock as herein provided.

1.4  Articles of Incorporation: Bylaws.

(a) At the Effective Time the Articles of Incorporation of
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp., as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time,
shall be the Articles of Incorporation of the Surviving. Corporation until thereafter amended as
provided by law and such Articles of Incorporation. Further, as part of the Merger and as soon
as practicable following the Effective Time, the Articles of Incorporation of SmartGate shall be
amended to change the name from SmartGate, Inc. to “Invisa, Inc.,” or such other name as may
be selected by SmartGate and the Articles of Incorporation of SmartGate/RadioMetrix
Acquisition Corp. shall be amended to change the name from SmartGate/RadioMetrix
Acquisition Corp. to “RadioMetrix, Inc.” or such other name as may be selected by SmartGate.

(b)  The Bylaws of SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp., as in effect
immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation until
thereafter amended.

1.5  Directors and Officers. The directors of SmartGate, immediately prior to the
Effective Time, shall be the directors of the Surviving Corporation immediately after the
Effective Time, each to hold office in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws
of said entity, and the officers of SmartGate, immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be
the officers of the Surviving Corporation immediately after the Effective Time, in each case until
their regpective successors are duly elected or appeinted and qualified.

1.6  Merger Consideration.

(a) As consideration for the Merger, SmartGate shall, at Closing, exchange
and pay the following consideration for 100% of the outstanding capital stock of RadioMetrix:

(1) $400,000 in cash.

(i) $800,000 by Promissory Note from SmartGate payable in one
installment of principal due in full 14 months following Closing, with interest at seven percent
(7%) per annum which shall be paid monthly during the 14-month period. In the event that the
Promissory Note {*Note”) is not paid in full when due, interest after such default shall be at the
rate of eighteen percent (18%s) per annum from the date of such default until such amount is paid
in full. There will be no pre-payment penalty. The form of Note is attached as Schedule

1.6(a)(i1);
(iti) 435,000 shares of SmartGate Common Stock; and




(v) A quarterly revenue-based payment as defined in and pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the Quarterly Revenue Based Payment Agreement which is attached -
hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference.

(b)  Additional Merger Consideration. Contingent upon the following
conditions (the “Earn Qut Conditions™), SmartGate shall pay the following additional merger
consideration to the shareholders of RadioMetrix (the “Earn Out Consideration”):

@) Upon the first commercial sale of a product Incorporating the
RadioMetrix Technology (as that term is defined in Exhibit “B™) or product applications,
SmartGate shall pay the following to the RadioMetrix shareholders:

(2) $4,500,000 by Promissory Note payable in one installment due
in sixty (60) months together with interest at nine percent (9%) per annum, which interest shall
be accrued and paid with principal. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “first commercial
sale” shall mean any arms length sale of a commercially available product to a non-affiliated
customer under normal commercial terms and conditions. While outstanding, the Promissory
Note (principal and accrued interest) may, at the discretion of holder, be converted into shares of
SmartGate Common Stock at the conversion ratic of one share of SmartGate common stock for
each $5.00 of principal and interest, the Note shall be in the form attached as Schedule

1.6(b)(i)(a); and

(b) 1,125,000 shares of SmartGate Common Stock. The number of
shares of Common Stock of SmartGate to be issued under this Section (b)(i)(b) shall be
automatically increased to the extent that the aggregate market value of the shares of common
stock to be issued under Section (b)(1)(b) on the date of issuance as determined by disinterested
members of the SmartGate Board of Directors is less than $4,500,000; and

(i) 3,750,000 shares of SmartGate Common Stock, upon the first to
occur of: (i) $25,000,000 in revenue from RadioMetrix Technology, product applications,
royalty or other revenue related to RadioMetrix Technology, product applications or assets
meluding but not limited to license, royalty, joint venture or other revenue or consideration; or
(i) $4,000,000 in net pre-tax profits from the RadioMetrix Technology, product applications and
royalty; or (iii) any thirty-day period during which SmartGate’s Common Stock has an average
closing price which equals or exceeds $15 per share; or (iv) a change in control of SmariGate.
“Change of Control” shall mean that SmartGate has: entered into a merger transaction in which
SmartGate is not the survivor; or sold shares representing sixty (60%) percent or more of the
then outstanding shares in a transaction; or sold all or substantially all (i.e. - seventy [70%]
percent or more of the fair market value) of the RadicMetrix Technology related assets; or sold
or granted a master license to the RadioMetrix Technology to a third party in which the
stockholders are different than the stockholders of SmartGate.

() Registration Rights. On two occasions, the shares of SmartGate Common
Stock issued or to be issued hereunder shall be registered with the SEC upon the demand of the
holders of seventy-five percent (75%) of the shares of SmartGate’s Common Stock issued
pursuant to this Agreement. Additionally, the holders of the shares issued hereunder shall have
piggyback registration rights in all future Registration Statements filed with the SEC by
SmartGate. The terms and conditions of the registration rights shall be as set forth in the
Registration Rights Agreement which is attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and incorporated herein
by this reference.




(d)  Conversion of RadioMetrix Common Stack.

(i) Each share of common stock of RadioMetrix (the “RadioMetrix’
Common Stock™) issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time {other than any
Dissenting Shares [as defined and to the extent provided in Section 1.7(a)] will be canceled and
extinguished and be converted automatically into the Merger Consideration set forth in Section
1.6.

(i) Capital Stock of SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. Each
share of common stock, par value $.001 per share, of SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.
issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be owned by SmartGate.
The stock certificate of SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. evidencing ownership of such
shares shall continue to evidence ownership of such shares of capital stock of the Surviving
Corporation. »

(i) Adjustments to SmartGate Shares. The number of SmartGate
shares to be issued hereunder shall be adjusted to reflect fully the effect of any stock split,
reverse split, stock dividend (including any dividend or distribution of securities convertible into
SmartGate Common Stock), reorganization, recapitalization or other like change with respect to
SmartGate Common Stock occurring before the issuance of said shares.

(tvy  Fractional Shares. No fraction of a share of SmartGate Comimon
Stock will be issued, but in lieu thereof each holder of shares of RadioMetrix Stock who would
otherwise be entitled to a fraction of a share of SmartGate Common Stock (after aggregating all
fractional shares of SmartGate to be received by such holder) shall be entitled to receive from
SmartGate a whole share of SmartGate Common Stock.

(e) The Merger Consideration and the Additional Merger Consideration shall
be allocated among the shareholders of RadioMetrix in an amount equal to the percentage of
ownership interest each RadioMetrix shareho]der held in RadioMetrix Common Stock as set
forth on Schedule 1.6(e).

1.7  Dissenting Shares.

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, any
shares of capital stock of RadioMetrix held by a holder who has demanded and perfected
appraisal rights for such shares in accordance with Florida Law and who, as of the Effective
Time, has not effectively withdrawn such appraisal rights (“Dissenting Shares™), shall not be
converted into or represent a right to receive SmartGate Common Stock pursuant to Section 1.6,
but the holder thereof shall only be entitied to such rights as are granted by Filorida Law.

(b)  Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a), if any holder of shares of
capital stock of RadioMetrix who demands appraisal of such shares under Florida Law shall
effectively withdraw the right to appraisal, then, as of the later of the Effective Time and the
occurrence of such event, such holder’s shares shall automatically be converted into and
represent only the right to receive SmartGate Common Stock, without interest thereon, upon
surrender of the certificate representing such shares.

() RadioMetrix shall give SmartGate: (i) prompt notice of any written
demands for appraisal of any shares of capital stock of RadioMetrix, withdrawals of such
demands, and any other instruments served pursuant to Florida Law and received by
RadioMetrix; and (ii) the opportunity to participate in all negotiations and proceedings which




take place prior to the Effective Time with respect to demands for appraisal under Florida Law.

RadioMetrix shall not, except with the prior written consent of SmartGate, voluntarily make any-
payment before the Effective Time with respect to any demands for appraisal of capital stock of
RadioMetrix or offer to settle or settle any such demands.

1.8 Surrender of Certificates.

(a)  Exchange Agent. Prior to the Effective Time, SmartGate shall designate
a bank or act as its own exchange agent (the “Exchange Agent”) in the Merger.

(b)  SmartGate to Provide SmartGate Conwmon Stock. Promptly after the
Effective Time, SmartGate shall make available to the Exchange Agent for exchange in
accordance with this Article I the shares of SmartGate Common Stock issuable pursuant to
Section 1.6 in exchange for outstanding shares of RadioMetrix Stock.

(c) Exchange Procedures. Promptly after the Effective Time, the Surviving
Corporation shall cause to be mailed to each holder of record of a certificate or certificates (the
“Certificates”) which, immediately prior to the Effective Time, represented outstanding shares of
RadioMetrix Common Stock whose shares were converted into the right to receive shares of
SmartGate Common Stock pursuant to Section 1.6: (i) a letter of transmittal (which shall specify
that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates shall pass, only upon
delivery of the Certificates to the Exchange Agent and shall be in such form and have such other
provisions as SmartGate may reasonably specify); and (i1) instructions for use in effecting the
surrender of the Certificates in exchange for certificates representing shares of SmartGate
Common Stock. Upon surrender of a Certificate for cancellation to the Exchange Agent or to
such other agent or agents as may be appointed by SmartGate, together with such letter of
transmittal, duly completed and validly executed in accordance with the instructions thereto, the
holder of such Certificate shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor, a certificate
representing the number of whole shares of SmartGate Common Stock which such holder is
entitled pursuant to the Merger Consideration payment provisions of Section 1.6, and the
Certificate so surrendered shall forthwith be canceled. Until so surrendered, each outstanding
Certificate that, prior to the Effective Time, represented shares of RadioMetrix Common Stock
will be deemed from and after the Effective Time, for all corporate purposes, other than the
payment of dividends, to evidence the ownership of the number of full shares of SmartGate
Common Stock into which such shares of RadioMetrix Common Stock shall have been so -
converted in accordance with the Merger Consideration payment provisions of Section 1.6.

(Y] Restrictions on Transfer. Shares of SmartGate issued to RadioMetrix
Shareholders hereunder shall not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and shall be
subject to the following restrictive legend which shall be affixed to each certificate.

“THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”) AND ARE “RESTRICTED SECURITIES” AS DEFINED
IN RULE 144 PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT. THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY
THE CERTIFICATE MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED,
TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED EXCEPT (1) PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT
THEN IN EFFECT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (2) IN COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 144, OR (3)
PURSUANT TO AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE ISSUER HEREQF, SATISFACTORY TN FORM
AND SUBSTANCE TO THE ISSUER, THAT SUCH REGISTRATION OR COMPLIANCE IS NOT
REQUIRED AS TO SUCH SALE, OFFER TO SELL, PLEDGE, HYPOTHECATION, TRANSFER OR
ASSIGNMENT™




6

(e} Transfers of Ownership. If any certificate for shares of SmartGate
Common Stock is to be issued in a name other than that in which the certificate surrendered in
exchange therefor is registered, it will be a condition of the issuance thereof that the certificate so
surrendered will be properly endorsed and otherwise in proper form for transfer and that the
person requesting such exchange will have paid to SmartGate or any agent designated by it any
transfer or other taxes required by reason of the issuance of a certificate for shares of SmartGate
Common Stock in any name other than that of the registered holder of the certificate surrendered,
or established to the satisfaction of SmartGate or any agent designated by it that such tax has
been paid or is not payable.

(f) No Liability. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 1.8,
none of the Exchange Agent, the Surviving Corporation or any party hereto shall be liable to a
holder of shares of SmartGate Common Stock or RadioMetrix Common Stock for any amount
properly paid to a public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or
similar law.

1.9  No Further Ownership Rights in RadioMetrix Common Stock. All shares of
SmartGate Common Stock issued upon the surrender for exchange of shares of RadioMetrix
Commeon Stock in accordance with the terms hereof (including any cash paid in respect thereof)
shall be deemed to have been issued in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining to such shares of
RadioMetrix Common Stock, and there shall be no further registration of transfers on the records
of the Surviving Corporation of shares of RadioMetrix Common Stock which were outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time. If, after the Effective Time, Certificates are presented
to the Surviving Corporation for any reason, they shall be canceled and exchanged as provided in
this Article I.

1.10  Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. In the event any certificates evidencing
shares of RadioMetrix Common Stock shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, the Exchange
Agent shall issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificates, upon the making of
an affidavit of that fact by the holder thereof, such shares of SmartGate Common Stock pursuant
to Section 1.6; provided, however, that SmartGate may, in its discretion and as a condition
precedent to the issuance thereof, require the owner of such lost, stolen or destroyed certificates
to deliver a bond in such sum as it may reasonably direct as indemnity against any claim that
may be made against SmartGate or the Exchange Agent with respect to the certificates alleged to
have been lost, stolen or destroyed.

1.11  Tax Consequences and Accounting Treatment It is intended by the parties
hereto that the Merger shall constitute reorganization within the meaning of Section 368 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

1.12  Taking of Necessary Action: Further Action. 1, at any time after the Effective
Time, any such further action is necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes of this
Agreement and to vest the Surviving Corporation with full right, title and possession to all assets,
property, rights, privileges, powers and franchises of RadioMetrix and SmartGate/RadioMetrix
Acquisition Corp., the officers and directors of RadioMetrix, SmartGate and
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. are fully authorized in the name of their respective
corporations or otherwise to take, and will take, all such lawful and necessary action.




ARTICLE I
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF RADIOMETRIX

RadioMetrix hereby makes the following representations and warranties to SmartGate
and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. All representations and warranties are to the best
knowledge and belief of RadioMetrix.

2.1 Organization of RadioMetrix. RadioMetrix (a) is a corporation duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Florida; and (b) has all
corporate power and authority and all governmental licenses, permits, authorizations, consents
and approvals to own and lease its properties and assets and to carry on its business as presently
conducted.

2.2 Authorization; Enforceability. RadioMetrix has, subject to shareholder approval,
full corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement, to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby, and to perform its obligations hereunder. This Agreement has been
executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of RadioMetrix and, upon approval by
RadioMetrix Shareholders, will constitute a legal, valid and binding obligation of RadioMetrix,
enforceable against RadioMetrix in accordance with its terms. ‘

2.3 - No Breach or Violation. RadioMetrix’ execution and delivery of this Agreement,
its compliance with and fulfillment of the terms of this Agreement, and its consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby, do not and will not, with notice or passage of time or both,
after giving effect to the approvals, consents and other actions described on Schedule 2.5 -
Consents and Approvals attached hereto (i) conflict with or result in a breach of the terms,
conditions or provisions of, (ii) constitute a defauit under, (iii} result in the creation of any lien
upon the capital stock, assets, properties or rights of RadioMetrix pursnant to, (iv) give any
person the right to accelerate any obligation under, or (v) result in a violation of, (a) any law
applicable to RadioMetrix, (b) RadioMetrix’ certificate of incorporation or bylaws, (c) any
material franchise, permit, license, authorization, concession, order, judgment, writ, injunction or
decree to which RadioMetrix is subject, or by which any of its assets, properties or rights are
bound, or (d) any material lease, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, trust agreement, note
agreement or other agreement or instrument to which RadioMetrix is subject, or by which any of
its assets, properties or rights are bound.

2.4 Lirigaiian There is no litigation, suit, claim, action, proceeding or investigation
pending or, to RadioMetrix’ knowledge, threatened by or against RadioMetrix, whether at law or
in equity, before any Governmental Authority or instrumentality or before any arbitrator of any
kind. RadioMetrix has not been a party to any litigation, suit, claim, action, proceeding or
investigation during the past two years. RadioMetrix is not a party or subject to any judgment,
writ, injunction, order or decree.

2.5  Approvals and Consents. Except as set forth on Schedule 2.5, no consent,
approval, exemption, audit, waiver, order or authorization of, or declaration, qualification,
designation, notice, filing or registration with, any governmental authority or any other person, is
required for RadioMetrix’ execution and delivery of this Agreement, the performance of its
obligations hereunder, or its consummation of the transactions contemplated herein.
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2.6 Ownership of United States Patent Number 3,337,039. RadioMetrix has good
and marketable title to United States Patemt Number 5,337,039, free and clear of any and all.
claims, rights, security interests, encumbrances or liens, other than a first lien security interest
held by SDR Metro and a second lien security interest held by SmartGate. Attached as Exhibit
“C” is a copy of the Assignment pursuant to which RadioMetrix acquired all patent rights from
SDR Metro. Exhibit “C” is a valid and enforceable agreement.

2.7 Receivable from SmartGate. RadioMetrix has an account receivable from
SmartGate. To the extent RadioMetrix receives any payment thereof from SmartGate prior to
Closing, RadioMetrix will use the proceeds of such receivables only to advance the RadioMetrix
Technelogy or technology development and to pay costs in connection with the Closing. No
portion of the account receivable will be assigned or collected or distributed to RadioMetrix
stockholders.

2.8  No Licenses or Other Long-Term Cormumitments. At Closing, RadioMetrix will
have no licenses, joint ventures or other long-term commitments concerning the RadioMetrix
Technology except those expressly consented to in writing by SmartGate. '

2.9  Tax Return. Attached hereto as Schedule 2.9 is the Federal Tax Return filed by
RadioMetrix for the year 2000 (the “RadioMetrix 2000 Tax Return™). The RadioMetrix 2000
Tax Return is a true and correct copy of the tax return filed by RadioMetrix.

2.10  Material Contracts. To the best knowledge of RadioMetrix, attached hereto as
Schedule 2.10 is a true, complete and accurate list of all contracts, whether written or oral,
entered into by RadioMetrix or by which RadioMetrix is bound and which either: (i) cannot be
canceled on ninety (90) days or less written notice; or (i) require the aggregate payment of more
than $1,000.

Except as set forth on Schedule 2.10, all contracts required 1o be disclosed pursuant 1o
this Section 2.10 are valid, binding and in full force and effect, and neither RadioMetrix, nor, to
RadioMetrix” knowledge, any other party thereto, is in breach or violation of, or default under,
nor, to RadioMetrix’ knowledge, is there any valid basis for such a claim of breach or violation
of, or default under, the terms of any such contract, and no event has occurred which constitutes
or, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice or both, would constitute, such a breach,
violation or default by RadioMetrix thereunder.

2.11 Employees. RadioMetrix has complied in all material respects with all applicable
laws relating to the employment of labor, including provisions thereof relating to wages, hours,
equal opportunity, collective bargaining, age, pregnancy, disability, sex, race, national origin and
other forms of unlawful discrimination, the WARN Act, and the payment and withholding of
social security and other taxes due in respect thereof.

2.12  Absence of Certain Developments. Since the date of the RadioMetrix 2000 Tax
Return, and except as otherwise disclosed in this Agreement or the schedules hereto,
RadioMetrix has not:

(a) Incurred any liabilities, other than liabilities incurred in the ordinary
course of business or related to this transaction, or discharged or satisfied any lien or
encumbrance or paid any liabilities, other than in the ordinary course of business, or failed to pay
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or discharge when due any liabilities of which the failure to pay or discharge has caused or
would reasonably be expected to cause any material damage or risk of material loss to any of its.
assets or properties;

(b}  Created, incurred, assumed or guaranteed any indebtedness for borrowed
money, or mortgaged, pledged or subjected any of its assets or properties to any mortgage, lien,
pledge, security interest, conditional sales contract or other encumbrance of any nature
whatsoever in an aggregate amount exceeding $1,000;

(3] Made or suffered any material amendment or termination of any contract
to which it is a party or by which it is bound, or canceled, modified or waived any material debts
or claims held by it or waived any rights of material value not in the ordinary course of business;

(d) Suffered any damage, destruction or loss, whether or not covered by
insurance, of any item or items carried on its books of account individually or in the aggregate at
more than $1,000 or suffered any repeated, recurring or prolonged shortage, cessation or
interruption of supplies or utilities or other services required to conduct its business;.

(e) Received notice or obtained knowledge of any actual or threatened labor
trouble, strike, union organizing efforts, or other occurrence, event or condition of any similar
character; '

(f) Made any acquisition of substantial assets or any commitments or
agreements for capital expenditures or capital additions or betterments exceeding $1,000
individually or in the aggregate;

(g) Increased the salaries or other compensation of, or made any advance
(excluding advances for ordinary and necessary business expenses) or loan to, any of its
employees or made any increase in, or any addition to, other benefits to which any of its
employees may be entitled;

2.13  Undisclosed Liabilities. RadioMetrix does not have any material liabilities or
obligations, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, due or to become due, or direct
or indirect, arising out of any action or inaction, or with respect to or based upon transactions or
events occarring, or any state of facts or condition existing, in connection with RadioMetrix’ -
conduct of its business, and, to RadioMetrix’ knowledge, there is no basis for any claim against
RadioMetrix for any such material liability or obligation, except (i) to the extent specifically
described in this Agreement or disclosed in the schedules hereto, (ii) to the extent fully reflected
or reserved against in RadioMetrix’ Financial Statements, (iii) for labilities and obligations
arising or incurred in the ordinary course of business under any contract disclosed on Schedule
2.10 or not required to be disclosed because of the term or amount involved, and {(iv) for
liabilities and obligations arising or incurred in the ordinary course of business which will be
paid or discharged prior to the due date thereof or at the Closing. At the Effective Time, to the
best knowledge of RadioMetrix, RadioMetrix shall have no liabilities or obligations, whether
accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, due or to become due, or direct or indirect, arising out
of any action or inaction, or with respect to or based upon transactions or events occurring, or
any state of facts or condition existing, in connection with RadioMetrix’ conduct of its business,
and, to RadioMetrix’ knowledge, there is no basis for any claim against RadioMetrix for any
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such material liability or obligation, except as disclosed on Schedule 2.10, 2.13 - Undisclosed
Liabilities or 2.20 - Indebtedness and Accounts Payable.

2.14  Tax Matrers. Other than as set forth on Schedule 2.14 hereto, (a) all tax returns
that RadioMetrix was or is required to file on or prior to the Closing Date have been duly filed
and all taxes thereon have been paid; (b) all tax returns that RadioMetrix is or will be required to
file after the Closing Date will be timely filed and all taxes reflected thereon will be timely paid;
(c) none of RadioMetrix’ assets or properties is subject to any lien (other than a permitted lien)
for payment of any unpaid taxes or levy proceedings; (d) all taxes which RadioMetrix is or was
required by law to withhold or collect have been duly withheld or collected, and have been
timely paid over to the proper taxing authorities to the extent due and payable; (&) RadioMetrix is
not a party to any contract that would require it to make any payment that would constitute an
“excess parachute payment” for purposes of Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code; (f)
RadioMetrix is not a “foreign person” as such term is defined in the Code; (g) RadioMetrix does
not have any express or implied obligation (including, but not limited to, an indemnification
obligation) with respect to the payment of taxes for any person other than RadioMetrix; and (h)
RadioMetrix has not received any notice of any additional assessments since the date of any tax
return nor has RadioMetrix received any notice of any audit or review of such tax returns.

2.15  Real Property. RadioMetrix neither owns nor leases any real property.

2.16 Licenses and Permits. RadioMetrix possesses all licenses, permits, consents,
concessions and other authorizations of governmental authorities that were required to own and
lease its assets and to conduct its business.

2.17  Environmental Matters.

(@) At all times prior to the Closing, RadioMetrix has complied and at the
Closing will be in compliance, in all material respects, with all environmental laws, and
RadioMetrix has not received any notice, report, or information (including information that any o
litigation, investigation or administrative or other proceedings of any kind are pending or
threatened) regarding any liabilities (whether accrued, absolute, contingent, unliquidated, or
otherwise), or any corrective, investigatory, or remedial obligations, arising under environmental
laws.

(b}  No hazardous substances have been, or are currently, located at, in, or
under or emanating from RadioMetrix’ assets in a manner which: (i) viclates any applicable
environmental laws, or (ii) requires response, remedial, corrective action or cleanup of any kind
under any applicable environmental law.

2.18  Corporate Documents, Books and Records. The books, records and accounts of
RadioMetrix accurately and fairly reflect in all material respects the transactions and the assets
and liabilities of RadioMetrix. RadioMetrix has not engaged in any transaction or used any
funds of RadioMetrix except for transactions and funds that have been and are reflected in the
normally maintained books and records of RadioMetrix.

2.19  Compliance with Law. To the best of its knowledge, RadioMetrix is not in
defanlt under, or in violation of, nor has RadioMetrix violated (and not cured) any law, statute,
referrals, or the regulations promulgated pursuant to such statites or related federal, state or local
regulation or any licenses, franchises, permits, authorizations or concessions granted by, or any
judgment, decree, writ, injunction or order of, any governmental authority, applicabie to
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RadioMetrix, To the best of its knowledge, no investigation or review by any governmental
authority with respect to RadioMetrix is pending or, to RadioMetrix’ knowledge, threatened.

2.20  Indebtedness and Accounts Payable. FExcept as set forth on Schedule 2.20,
RadioMetrix has no debts or accounts payable. Further, at the Closing, each employee, officer
and director of RadioMetrix shall execute a resignation and an Estoppel Certificate confirming
that said employee, officer or director has no entitlement or claim against RadioMetrix, other
than for outstanding shares owned of record, except as otherwise listed in Schedule 2.20.

2.21  Labor Agreements and Employee Relations. RadioMetrix is not a party to any
collective bargaining or similar agreement covering any of its employees. No labor organization
or group of employees of RadioMetrix has made a demand for recognition, has filed a petition
seeking a representation proceeding, or given RadioMetrix notice of any intention to hold an
election of a collective bargaining representative. RadioMetrix has not suffered any strike,
slowdown, picketing or work stoppage by any group of employees affecting its business.

2.22  Brokers’ Fees. Neither RadioMetrix nor any person on RadioMetrix’ behalf has
retained any broker, finder or agent or agreed to pay any brokerage fee, findes’s fee, commission
or other payment with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

2.23 Al Material Information. No representation or warranty made by RadioMetrix
in this Agreement, including the attached schedules, and no statement contained in any
certificate or other instrument furnished to SmartGate at the Closing, knowingly contains any
untrue statement ‘of a material fact or knowingly omits to state any material fact necessary in
order to make any statement therein not misleading.

2.24 Employee Benefit Plans. Except as set forth on Schedules 2.10, 2.20 or 2.24
Employee Benefit Plans:

(a) RadioMetrix does not, and does not have any obligation to, maintain or
contribute to any Employee Benefit Plan. '

(b} No event has occurred, and to RadioMetrix’ knowledge, there exists no
condition or circumistances, in comnection with which RadioMetrix could be subject to any
liability under the terms of any Employee Benefit Plan of RadioMetrix, ERISA, the Code or any
other applicable law which would have a material adverse effect on its business.

(c) The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement will not result
in any: (1) increase in the compensation or benefits otherwise payable under any Employee
Benefit Plan of RadioMetrix or pursuant to any agreement with respect to any employee of
RadioMetrix; (ii) acceleration of the time of payment or vesting of any such compensation or
benefits due to any employee of RadioMetrix; or (iii) renew or extend the term of any agreement
regarding compensation of any employee of RadioMetrix, which in the case of (i), (ii) or (iii)
above, would create any liability to SmartGate after the Closing Date. No payment or benefit,
which may be made by RadioMetrix with respect to any employee of the RadioMetrix, will be
classified as an “excess parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code.

(d) SmartGate will have no liability or obligation of any kind whatsoever
under or with respect to any Employee Benefit Plan of RadioMetrix.

2.25 Benefit Claims. RadioMetrix has no liability for any benefit which has been or
could be claimed as 2 result of any event occurring prior to the Closing Date under any
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Employee Benefit Plan or any workers’ compensation or similar law (i) which is not fully
covered by insurance, or (i) if not so insured, for which RadioMetrix has not established an.
adequate reserve on RadioMetrix” Financial Statements.

2,26 THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.
2.27 Stage of Development.

2.27.1 Product Testing. While RadioMetrix has conducted product testing in
the past, its product testing is not considered completed and further testing is anticipated.
RadioMetrix gives no assurance nor makes any representations or warranty regarding the
outcome of future testing.

2.27.2 Commercialization. RadioMetrix has not commercially marketed any
products, and no assurance is given and no representation or warranty is made regarding time,
expense and obstacles to commercial sales.

2.27.3 Patent Protection. While RadioMetrix owns all right, title and interest T
in and to Patent No. 5,337,039 (“Proprietary Rights™), no assurance or representation or warranty '
is given that sald Proprietary Rights completely protect the RadioMetrix products from
competitive technology or the development of new competitive technology, and further, no
assurance is given Hot representation or warranty made that the Proprietary Rights will not be
challenged, and if challenged, that RadioMetrix would prevail in any such challenge.

ARTICLE It
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY SMARTGATE

‘ SmartGate hereby makes the following representations and warranties to RadioMetrix.
All representations and warranties are made to the best knowledge of SmartGate.

3.1  Exstence and Qualification. SmartGate (2) is a corporation duly organized,
validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada; (b) has all corporate
power and authority and all governmental licenses, permits, authorizations, consents and
approvals to own and lease its properties and assets and to carry on its business as presently
conducted; and (c) is duly qualified or licensed as a foreign corporation in, and is in good
standing under the laws of, each jurisdiction in which the nature or conduct of its business or the
character or location of its properties or assets requires such qualification, except where the
failure to be so qualified would not have and would not reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect.

3.2  Quistanding Capital Stock. As of February 6, 2002, SmartGate shall have an
aggregate of 12,015,355 shares of capital stock issued and outstanding (excluding all shares of
common stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding SmartGate Options and
any subsequent sale of shares) consisting of a single Class of Common Stock. SmartGate has
approximately 2,711,000 shares reserved for stock options which may be granted. Additionally,
SmartGate may be reserving an additional 3,000,000 shares for issuance under a proposed Units
Offering.

3.3  Authorization; Enforceability. SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix
Acquisition Corp., each have full corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement, to
consumunate the transactions contemplated hereby, and to perform their respective obligations
hereunder. This Agreement has, subject to shareholder approval of SmartGate/RadioMetrix
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Acquisition Corp., been executed and delivered by a duly authorized officer of SmartGate and
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation
of SmartGate and SmartGate Acquisition Corp, enforceable against SmartGate and
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. in accordance with its terms.

3.4  No Breach or Violation. Neither SmartGate’s nor SmartGate/RadioMetrix
Acquisition Corp.’s execution and delivery of this Agreement, their compliance with and
fulfillment of the terms of this Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, do not and will not, with notice or passage of time or both, after giving
effect to the approvals, consents and other actions described on Schedule 3.5 - Consents and
Approvals attached hereto (i) conflict with or result in a breach of the terms, conditions or
provisions of,(ii) constitute a default or event of default under, (iii) result in the creation of any
lien upon any of the capital stock, assets, properties or rights of SmartGate or
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. pursuant to, (iv) give any person the right to
accelerate any obligation under, or (v) result in a violation of, (a) any law applicable to
SmartGate or SmartGate/RadioMetrix = Acquisition Corp., (b) SmartGate’s or
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.’s certificates of incorporation or bylaws, (c) any
material franchise, permit, license, authorization, concession, order, judgment, writ, injunction or
decree to which SmartGate or SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. are subject, or by
which any of their assets, properties or rights are bound, or {d) any material lease, mortgage,
indenture, deed of trust, trust agreement, note agreement or other agreement, contract,
understanding or instrument to which SmartGate or SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. is
subject, or by which any of their assets, properties or rights are bound.

3.5  Approvals and Consents. Except as provided In Schedule 3.5, no consent,
approval, exemption, audit, waiver, order or authorization of, or registration, qualification,
designation, declaration, notice or filing with, any governmental authority or any other person is
required for SmartGate’s or SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.’s execution and delivery
of this Agreement, the performance of their obligations hereunder, the assumption of the
assumed obligations of RadioMetrix, or SmartGate’s or SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition
Corp.’s consummation of the other transactions contemplated herein.

3.6  Sublicense Agreement. The Sublicense Agreement between SmartGate, L.C. and
RadioMetrix, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit “D” is in good standing and is enforceable.
SmartGate, L.C. is actively commercializing products pursuant to the Sublicense Agreement.
SmartGate, L.C. is'in full compliance with said Agreement, and to the best of its knowledge,
RadioMetrix is in full compliance with said Agreement. As a result of the commercialization of
products and the development of technology pursuant to the Sublicense Agreement, SmartGate,

" through its Independent Committee of Directors, has determined that it is in SmartGate’s best
interest to expand its rights, interests, and ownership of the RadioMetrix Technology.

3.7  Conflict of Interest. SmartGate has been fully advised of the overlapping
interests of certain officers, directors and stockholders of RadioMetrix and SmartGate, including
that of Stephen Michael, Samuel Duffey, William Dolan and Robert Roth. SmartGate has had
full access to all books, records and other documents of RadioMetrix and to ask questions of
RadioMetrix’ officers and directors. SmartGate has appointed an Independent Committee of its
Board of Directors consisting of Ed King and Robert Knight (the “Independent Committee of
Directors™), and has vested said Independent Committee of Directors with full and complete
authority to negotiate, perform due diligence and, in its sole discretion, to enter into and close
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this Agreement. The Independent Committee of Directors determined, in the exercise of its sole

discretion, to seek an opportunity to merge with RadioMetrix. RadioMetrix, as a condition to.
initiating and conducting such negotiations, required that SmartGate expressly acknowledge and

waive all conflicts of interest of RadioMetrix and its officers, directors and stockholders,

expressly including, but not limited to, Mr. Michael, Mr. Duffey, Mr. Dolan and Mr. Roth, and

members of their families and trusts administered by them. As part of said waiver, SmartGate
has acknowledged and agreed that Messrs. Michael, Duffey, Dolan and Roth would abstain from

participation in any discussions, valuation, or negotiations regarding this Agreement on behalf of
SmartGate and would be allowed to represent their interest in RadioMetrix in all such

discussions and negotiations. The Independent Committee of Directors has had access to and

has relied upon input from its independent consultant, Marshall & Stevens, and from its

independent legal counsel, Spitzer & Feldman, P.C. in all matters relating to this Agreement.

Section 6.8 is incorporated herein by reference and expressly made a representation of
SmartGate,

3.8  Financial Statements. Attached hereto as Schedule 3.8 are audited financial
statements for the periods ending March 31, 1999 and 2000 and unaudited financial statements
for the period ending September 30, 2001 (“SmartGate’s Financial Statements”). The financial
statements of SmartGate fairly and accurately reflect the financial condition of SmartGate.

3.9  Brokers’ Fees. Neither SmartGate nor any person on SmartGate’s behalf has
retained any broker, finder or agent or agreed to pay any brokerage fee, finder’s fee, commission
or other payment with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

. 3,10 Al Material Information. No representation or warranty made herein by
SmartGate, including the attached schedules, and no statement contained in any certificate or
other instrument furnished to RadioMetrix as required herein contains any untrue statement of a
material fact or omits to state any material fact necessary in order to make any statement therein
not misleading,

ARTICLE 1V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SI\IARTGATE/RADIOMETR]X
ACQUISITION CORP.

SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp hereby makes the following representations
and warranties to RadioMetrix:

(a) At the Effective Time, SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. will be
a duly incorporated and existing Nevada corporation. SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.
is being organized solely for the purpose of entering into and carrying out this Agreement.
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. has conducted no business and will conduct no
business except the execution and Closing of this Agreement prior to the Effective Time.
SmartGate/RadioMetrix  Acquisition ~ Corp. is  wholly owned by  SmartGate.
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. has no debts, liens or liabilities of any nature or
description.

(b)  SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.’s Articles of Incorporation and
Bylaws will remain in existence and be unchanged through the Effective Time.
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(c) SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. will enter into no agreements
and incur no liabilities or debts, except those directly related to and disclosed in this Agreement, .
except as otherwise provided for herein.

ARTICLE V
CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER

5.1 Conditions to Obligations of Each Party to Effect the Merger. The respective
obligations of each party to this Agreement to effect the Merger shall be subject to the
satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of the following conditions:

(@)  Due Diligence. This Agreement and the Merger are determined by the
Independent Committee of Directors to be in SmartGate’s best interest.

(b) Working Capital.  SmartGate has a minimum of $3,000,000 in
unrestricted working capital in excess of the working capital requirements of SmartGate prior to
the Merger.

(c) Stockholder Approval. This Agreement and the Merger and other
transactions contemplated hereby shall have been approved and adopted by the requisite vote of
the stockholders of RadioMetrix and of the Sub.

(d)  Ne Injunctions or Restraints: llegality. No temporary restraining order,
preliminary or permanent injunction or other order issued by any court of competent jurisdiction
or other legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Merger shall be in
effect, nor shall any proceeding brought by an administrative agency or commission or other
governmental authority or instrumentality, domestic or foreign, seeking any of the foregoing be
pending; nor shall there be any action taken, or any statute, rule, regulation or order enacted,
entered, enforced or deemed applicable to the Merger, which makes the consummation of the
Merger illegal.

3.2 Additional Conditions to Obligations of the RadioMetrix. The obligations of
RadioMetrix to consummate and effect this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby
shall be subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of each of the following
conditions, any of which may be waived, in writing, exclusively by RadioMetrix:

(a) Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The representations and
warranties of SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. in this Agreement shall
be true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Effective Time as though such
representations and warranties were made on and as of such time and SmartGate shall have
performed and complied in all material respects with all covenants, obligations and conditions of
this Agreement required to be performed and complied with by it as of the Effective Time.

(b)  Certificate of SmartGate. RadioMetrix shall have been provided with a
certificate executed on behalf of SmartGate by its Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer to the
effect that, as of the Effective Time:

‘ (D All representations and warranties made by SmartGate and
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. under this Agreement are true and complete in all
material respects; and
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(ii)  All covenants, obligations and conditions of this Agreement to be
performed by SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. on or before such date.
have been so performed in all material respects,

(¢) Satisfactory Form of Legal Matters. The form, scope and substance of all
legal matters and accounting matters contemplated hereby and all closing documents and other
papers delivered hereunder shall be reasonably acceptable to counsel to RadioMetrix.

5.3  Additional Conditions to the Obligations of SmartGate and SmartGate
Acquisition Corp. The obligations of SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.
to consummate and effect this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be
subiect to the satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of each of the following conditions,
. any of which may be waived, in writing, exclusively by SmartGate:

(a)  Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The representations and
warranties of RadioMetrix in this Agreement shall be true and correct in all material respects on
and as of the Effective Time.

() Cémﬁcate of RadioMetrix. SmartGate shall have been provided with a
certificate executed on behalf of RadioMetrix by its President to the effect that, as of the
Effective Time: o o '

. (i) All representations and warranties made by RadioMetrix under this
Agreement are true and complete in all material respects; and

(i)  All covenants, obligations and conditions of this Agreement to be
performed by RadioMetrix on or before such date have been so performed in all material
respects.

{c) Third Party Consenfs. Any and all consents, waivers and approvals
required from third parties relating 1o the contracts and agreements of RadioMetnx so that the
Merger and other transactions contemplated hereby do not adversely affect the rights of, and
- benefits to, RadioMetrix thereunder shall have been obtained.

(d)  Safisfactory Form of Legal and Accouniting Marters. The form, scope
and substance of all legal and accounting matters contemplated hereby and all closing documents
and other papers delivered hereunder shall be reasonably acceptable to SmartGate’s counsel.

(e) Legal Opinion. SmartGate has received a legal opinion from Spitzer &
Feldman, P.C., legal counsel to the Independent Committee of Directors in form and substance
reasonably acceptable to the Independent Committee of Directors. -

()  No Material Adverse Changes. There shall not have occurred any event,
fact or condition, which has had or reasonably would be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect on RadioMetrix or SmartGate as the survivor.

(g)  Dissenters. The number of shares of RadioMetrix Common Stock held by
holders who either (i) have exercised appraisal rights or (i) retain the ability to exercise such
appraisal rights shall not exceed a level acceptable to SmartGate.

(h)  Fairness Opinion. The Independent Committee of Directors has received
input and an opinion from its financial advisor, Marshall & Stevens, that the transaction provided
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for in this Agreement is “fair”, which opinion is in form and substance acceptable to the
Independent Committee of DLrectors

ARTICLE VI
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES

6.1  Cooperation. RadioMetrix, SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition
Corp. will cooperate with each other and their respective agents in carrying out the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, and in delivering all documents and instruments deemed
reasonably necessary or useful by the other party.

6.2  Expenses. Each party hereto will be solely responsible for and will bear all of its
own costs and expenses associated with this Agreement, including without limitation, expenses
of legal counsel, accountants, advisors and others. RadioMetrix may utilize the account
receivable from SmartGate to pay closing costs. '

6.3 Confidential Information. SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition
Corp. agree that all “Confidential Information” (as hereinafter defined) so provided by
RadioMetrix: shall be treated by SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. as
confidential, and all such information will be utilized by SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix
Acquisition Corp. for the sole and limited purpose of their due diligence investigation relating to
the Merger, and shall not be disclosed to any third party other than SmartGate and
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.’s attorneys, accountants, officers or other authorized
agents, all of whom shall have been placed under an identical confidentiality obligation by
SmartGate and  SmartGate/RadioMetrix =~ Acquisition Corp.,, if SmartGate and
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. should decide not to go forward with the Merger.
Furthermore, if the Closing does not occur, SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition
Corp. shall promptly return all written Confidential Information (and all copies thereof) in their
possession or ‘will certify to RadioMetrix and RadioMetrix Shareholders that all of such
documents not returned to RadioMetrix have been destroyed by SmartGate and
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp., whichever disposition RadioMetrix. directs.

6.4  Publicity. SmartGate and SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. shall not,
without prior written consent of RadioMetrix, publish any press releases or disseminate any news
regarding this Agreement or transaction contemplated herein prior to Closing unless required to
do so by law.

6.5 THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

6.6 Commercialization. SmartGate shall, following the Closing, exercise reasonable
efforts to commercialize products utilizing the RadioMetrix Technology.

6.7  Indemnification and Hold Harmless. SmartGate’s Independent Committee has
been made aware of the RadioMetrix shareholders’ conflicts of interest in connection with this
proposed Merger and has determined, even with the existence of the conflicts, that this proposed
Merger is in the best interest of SmartGate. The RadioMetrix shareholders have advised
SmartGate’s Independent Committee that they would proceed with the proposed Merger only if,
as a condition to the Closing, SmartGate agreed to indemnify and hold them and related parties
harmless from any claim, loss or action resulting from the conflicts of interest. Accordingly,
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SmartGate shall, at Closing, enter into and deliver to the RadioMetrix shareholders the
Indemnity Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “F” and incorporated herein by this reference..

6.8  Future Conflicts of Interest. Following the Effective Time, SmartGate shall
conduct Iits business, including all aspects relating to the commercialization, development,
product introduction, product marketing and the establishment of product and licensing pricing
of the RadioMetrix Technology in a fashion deemed by the Board of Directors to be in the best
interest of SmartGate and its stockholders without regard to the interests of RadioMetrix
stockholders on the Closing Date or with regard to the Merger Consideration issued under this
Agreement. RadioMetrix stockholders, as of the Closing Date, hereby acknowledge the absolute
discretion of SmartGate and its Independent Committee of Directors to make any and all
decisions regarding the manner in which the RadioMetrix Technology shall be commercialized
and hereby waive any right to object thereto. In the event that the Board of Directors identifies
any matter before the Board or SmartGate which involves a conflict of interest between
SmartGate and the RadioMetrix stockholders as of the Closing Date, the decision or matters
relating to or effected by said conflict of interest shall be exclusively and solely resolved by an
Independent Committee of Directors appointed by the Board of Directors. Such Independent
Committee shall have full access to independent legal counsel and independent advisors,
including financial advisors. In all such matters, including matters relating to the creation of an
Independent Committee or the determination of whether a conflict of interest may be involved,
all individuals including, but not limited to, Messrs. Michael, Duffey, Dolan and Roth, which are
officers, directors or stockholders of RadioMetrix on the Closing Date, shall abstain. Any
determination as to whether a conflict of interest exists shall be determined by the Independent
Members of the Board of Directors with all interested or conflicted Directors abstaining.

ARTICLE vII
CONDUCT OF THE PARTIES PENDING CLOSING

7.(a) Until the satisfaction of all Conditions to Merger: (i) SmartGate and RadioMetrix
may each conduct its respective business and enter into agreements and issue shares of its capital
stock in the ordinary course of their businesses without consultation or approval of the other
party; (ii) the Promissory Note outstanding as of the date hereof and due and payable by
SmartGate to RadioMetrix in the approximate amount of $330,500, plus accrued interest shall
remain in place and, upon the Closing, the balance of the Promissory Note shall remain unpaid
and become a debt of SmartGate to its new wholly owned Sub, except as may be otherwise
agreed to by the parties. '

(b)  Inthe event the Condition to the Merger set forth in Section 5.1(b) is not satisfied
prior to the Closing, SmartGate may, in the exercise of the sole discretion of its Independent
Committee of Directors elect to either: (i) terminate this Merger Agreement; or (ii)} waive the
condition set forth in Section 5.1(b) and proceed to Closing, where upon the following
modifications shall be made to the merger consideration: (a) the consideration as set forth in
Section 1.6(a)(i) shall be amended to delete the $400,000 in cash payment and to replace it with
a Promissory Note in the principal amount of $500,000 due and payable in one principal
installment 48 months following Closing. The Promissory Note may be prepaid at any time by
SmartGate without penalty. The Promissory Note shall provide for the monthly payment of
interest at 10% per annum for the initial six months following Closing and thereafter (if not
previously prepaid) interest for the balance of the term of the Promissory Note shall be 15% per
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annum and the interest shall be paid monthly. The form of Note is atiached as Schedule 7(b);

and (b) Section 1.6(a)(ii) shall be amended to provide that the Independent Committee of.
Directors, in the exercise of its discretion, may extend the 3$800,000 Promissory Note for an

additional one year term. In the event that the Promissory Note is extended, the interest rate

shall be increased to 15% per annum and shall be accrued for the extension period and all

interest accrued during the initial term shall be paid in full.

ARTICLE VIO
SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

8.1  Survival of Representations and Warranties. All covenants to be performed
prior to the Effective Time, and all representations and warranties in this Agreement or in any
instrument delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the Merger and continue in effect.

ARTICLE IX
TERMINATION, AMENDMENT AND WAIVER

9.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated and the Merger abandoned at
any time prior to the Effective Time: : -

(a) By mutual consent of RadioMetrix and Smart(Gate;

“(b) By SmartGate if it is not in material breach of its obligations under this
Agreement and there has been a material breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or
agreement contained in this Agreement on the part of RadioMetrix and such breach has not been
cured within fifteen (15) days after notice to RadioMetrix.

{c) By RadioMetrix if it is not in material breach of its respective obligations
under this Agreement and there has been a material breach of any representation, warranty,
covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement on the part of SmartGate or
SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. and such breach has not been cured within 15 days
after notice to SmartGate;

(d) By any party hereto if: (1) the Closing has not occusred by February 25

2002; (ii) theré shall be a final nonappealable order of a federal or state court in effect preventing
consummation of the Merger; (iii) there shall be any action taken, or any statute, rule, regulation
or order enacted, promulgated or issued or deemed applicable to the Merger by any
Governmental Entity which would make consummation of the Merger illegal; or (iv) there shall
be any action taken, or any statute, rule, regulation or order enacted, promulgated or issued or
deemed applicable to the Merger by any Governmental Entity, which would (a) prohibit
SmartGate’s or RadioMetrix’ ownership or operation of all or a material portion of the business
of RadioMetrix, or compel SmartGate or RadioMetrix to dispose of or hold separate all or a
material portion of the business or assets of RadioMetrix or SmartGate as a result of the Merger
or (b) render SmartGate, SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. or RadioMetrix unable to
consummate the Merger, except for any waiting period provisions.

Where action is taken to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 9.1, it
shall be sufficient for such action to be authorized by the Board of Directors (as applicabie) of
the party taking such action.

9.2  Effect of Termination. In the event of termination of this Agreement as provided
in Section 9.1, this Agreement shall forthwith become void and there shall be no liability or
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obligation on the part of SmartGate, SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. or RadioMetrix

or their respective officers, directors or stockholders, except if such termination results from the .
breach by a party hereto of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements set

forth in this Agreement.

9.3  Amendment This Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto at any time
before or after approval of matters presented in connection with the Merger by the stockholders
of those parties required by applicable law to so approve but, after any such stockholder
approval, no amendment shall be made which by law requires the further approval of
stockholders of a party without obtaining such further approval. This Agreement may not be
amended except by an instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of the parties hereto.

9.4  Extension; Waiver. At any time prior to the Effective Time any party hereto
may, to the extent legally allowed, (i) extend the time for the performance of any of the
obligations or other acts of the other parties hereto, (ii) waive any inaccuracies in the
representations and warranties made to such party contained herein or in any document delivered
pursuant hereto and (i) waive compliance with any of the agreements or conditions for the
benefit of such party contained herein. Any agreement on the part of a party hereto to any such
extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in wntmg s1gned on behalf of
such party.

ARTICLE X
GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1  Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be deemed given if delivered personally or by commercial delivery service, or mailed by
registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) or sent via telecopy to the parties at the
following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):

{a) If to SmartGate:

To: SmartGate, Inc.
4400 Independence Court
Sarasota, Florida 34234
Attention: Independent Committee Member, Edmund C. King
Fax: (941) 355-9373 o :

Copy to:
Spitzer & Feldman, P.C.
405 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Attention: Steven A. Sanders
Fax: (212) 838-7472

(b)  ifto SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.:

To: SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp.
4400 Independence Court
Sarasota, Florida 34234
Attention: Independent Comanittee Member, Edmund C.King
Fax: (941)355-9373
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Copy to:
Spitzer & Feldman, P.C.
405 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Attention: Steven A. Sanders
Fax: (212) 838-7472

(©) if to RadioMetrix:

To: RadioMetrix, Inc.
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236
Fax: (941) 954-5825

102 Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to Schedules or
Exhibits, such reference shall be to a Schedule or Exhibit to this Agreement unless otherwise
indicated. The words “include,” “includes” and “including” when used herein shall be deemed
in each case to be followed by the words “without limitation.” The table of contents and
headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any
way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

10.3 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counierparts, all
of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when one
or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other party, it
being understood that all parties need not sign the same counterpart.

10.4 Miscellaneous. This Agreement and the documents and instruments and other
agreements among the parties hereto (a) constitute the entire agreement among the parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both
written and oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof; (b) are not intended
to confer upon any other person any rights or remedies hereunder; and (¢) shall not be assigned
by operation of law or otherwise except as otherwise specifically provided.

10.5 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed in all respects, including
validity, interpretation and effect, by the laws of the State of Florida. All parties hereto agree to
submit to the jurisdiction of the federal and state courts of the State of Florida and further agree
that service of documents commencing any suit therein may be made as provided in Section
10.1.

10.6 Arbitration. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this
Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be exclusively settled by binding arbitration before the
American Arbitration Association situated in Tampa, Florida before a panel of three (3)
arbitrators. All aspects of the arbitration shall be governed by the rules then in effect of the
American Arbitration Association. Arbitration shall be the scle and exclusive manner for
resolving all disputes hereunder. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrators may be
entered in any court baving jurisdiction thereof. Each party shall pay its respective share of the
fees, costs and expenses billed by the American Arbitration Association and the arbitrators, and
the prevailing party shall recover from the non-prevailing party all of the prevailing party’s costs,
expenses and fees it incurred in connection with the arbitration, including reasonable attorneys’
fees.
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10,7  Rules of Construction. The parties hereto agree that they have been represenied
By counsel during the negotiation and execution of this Agreement and, therefore, waive the
application of any law, regulation, holding or rule of construction providing that ambiguities in
an agreement or other document will be construed against the party drafiing such agreement or

document.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SmartGate, SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp., and
RadicMetrix have caused this Agreement to be signed by themselves or their duly authorized
respective officers, all as of the date first written above.

SmartGate Inc.

By _ Sl £ g
Edmund C. King d
1ts: Chief Financial Officer

Radio Metrix Inc.

By: J/MMWMF—

Stephen A. Michael”
Its: President

SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp,

By: _M({ /(m_q
Edmund C. King
Its: Chief Financial Officer
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® .
SmartGate Non-Contact Safety for Gates & Doors

The best safety sensing in the world! . ' ST

Telephone 941-355-0361
Facsimile 941-355-9373
USA Toll Free B00-363-8361

September 27, 2001

Radio Metrix, Inc.
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236

Gentlemen:

The purpose of this Letter of Intent (“LOI™ is to set forth the points of agreement
between SmartGate, Inc. (“SmartGate”) and Radio Metrix, Inc. (“Radio Metrix™) with respect to
the merger of Radio Metrix into a wholly owned subsidiary of SmartGate (the “Sub”) In
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth below. For the avoidance of any doubt, this o
L.O] sha!ll be considered an expression of our mutual intention, but not a binding agresment o
(except for Paragraphs 2, 8,9, 10 and 11 below). The parties shall be bound only under a fully- N
executed definitive agreement (the “Definitive Agreement”), embodying terms and conditions
acceptable to them with respect to the transactions conternplated by this LOL

1. Merger. Radio Metrix shall be merged intc SUB (the “Forward Triangular Merger™).
The effect of the Forward Triangular Merger shall be for Sub to become a division of

SmartGate and for the current stockholders of Radio Metrix to become stockholders of
SmartGate. -

2. Conditions To Merger. The Merger is conditioned on: (i} SmartGate having a minimum
of $3.000,000 in unrestricted cash on hand (beyond the capital requirement of SmartGate
io finance its current pre-merger operations for the tweive month period following the
closing) to Be dedicated to financing the closing of the Merger, the purchase of the Patent
‘as provided in Exhibit A and the commercialization of the Radio Metrix technology and
product applications; and (ii) SmartGate’s independent directors determining, in the
exercise of their sole judgment, that the proposed merger is £air and in the best interest of -
its shareholders after & fill and complete opportunity to conduct due diligence
investigation, consult with their independent legal counsel and consult with and obtaln
written confirmation from their independent financial consultant (the “Conditions to
Merger™), ' :

3. Merger Consideration. As consideration for the Forward Triangular Merger, SmanGate
shall, at closing, exchange and pay the following consideration for 100% of the
outstanding capital stock of Radio Metrix: '

(i)  $400,000 in cash or same day cash available funds;




(i) '$800,000 by Promissory Note from SmartGate, payable in one instaliment:
together with monthly interest at seven percent (7%) with all principal due in
1]} one year following closing. In the event that the Promissory Note is not
paid in full when due, the interest rate shali be retroactively restated to
gighteen percent (18%) from the issuance date of the Note with said adjusted
interest rate remaining in effect until the Note is paid in full. During such

time, the Note shall be due and payable upon demand of the holders. There
will be no pre-payment penalty; '

(i) 300,000 shares of SmartGate Common Stock; and

(iv) A quarterly revenue-based payment equal to seven percent (7%) of the sales
of the Sub (i.e. ali revenue of any description related to the acquired Radio .
Metrix assets, technology, product applications including but not limited to
license, royalty, joint venture or other consideration or revenue), The revernue-
based payment shall be paid one half in cash and one half in SmartGate
Common Stock. The SmartGate Common Stock shall be valued at seventy-
five percent (75%) of the average closing market price for the 30 calendar
days immediately preceding the end of the quarterly period. SmartGate may
terminate the revenue-based payment at any time by paying an amount equal
1o the appraised fair market value of the revenue-based payment
(“Termination Payment”). The appraisal shall be performed by an appraisor(s)
mutually acceptable to SmartGate and seventy five percent (“Super Mazjority™)
of the “sharehoiders of Radio Metrix. The appraisal shall reflect the full
commercial value, without adjustment for current or past relationships
berween -the parties, past revenue based payments, other consideration or
equity interests. The appraisal shall take into consideration the future
prospects of the Radio Metrix technology, the present as well as future

. product applications and the potential of future revenue assuming reasonable
financia) support. Further, the appraisal shall take into consideration the
potential of future revenue-based payments over the term of the entitlement
(including but not limited to license, royalty, joint venture and other revenue)
from products or technology applications which are currently commercialized
and which are planned for future commercialization. The Termination
Payment shall be made in cash and common stock in the same fashion as the
quarterly revenue-based payments.

4. Additional Merger Consideration. Contingent upen the following conditions (the “Earn
Out Conditions”), SmartGate shall pay the following additional merger cofisideration to the
chareholders of Radio Metrix (the “Earn Out Consideration™):

4400 Independence Court, Sarasota, Florida 34234 E-mail — corporate@safefysensor.com www. safetysensor.com
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(iy Upon the first commercial sale of a product incorporating the Radio Metrix.

_ technology or product applications, SmartGate shall pay the following to the

- : Radio Metrix shareholders: (i) $4,500,000 by Promissory Note payable in one
installment due in sixty (60) months together with inierest at nine percent -

(9%) per annum. While outstanding, the Promissory Note may, at the

discrerion of holder, be converied into shares of SmartGate Common Stock at

the conversion ratio of one share of SmartGate common stock for each $5,00

of principal and interest; and (ii) 1,125,000 shares of SmartGate Common

Stock; and ‘

(if) 3,750,000 shares of SmartGate Common Stock, upon the first to occur of: (1)
$25,000,000 in revenue from Radio Metrix technology, product applications,
royalty or other revenue related to Radic Metrix technology, product
applications Or assets including but not limited to license, royalty, joint
venture or other revenue or consideration; {it) $4,000,000 in net pre-tax profits
from the Radio Metrix technology, product applications and royalty; {iii) the
per share price of SmartGate Common Stock increases by one hundred
percent (100%) from the per share price on the date of this Letter of Intent; or

(iv) a change in control of SmartGate or the sale of substantially all of
. SmartGate’s assels.

5. Registration Rights. On 1wo occasions, the shares of SmartGate Common. Stock issued
or 1o be issued hereunder shall be registéred with the SEC vupon the demand of the
holders of a Super Majority of Radio Metrix shares at closing. Additionally, the holders

. of the shares issued hereunder shall have piggyback registration rights in all future
Registration Statements filed with the SEC by SmartGate,

6. Definitive Agreement. The parties agree to exercise good faith 10 negotiate, with a view
to entering into a Definitive Agreement regarding the Forward Triangular Merger.
Assuming satisfaction or waiver of the Conditions to Merger, the Definitive Agreement
will provide for closing on or before December 15, 2001, unless mutually extended by
the parties.” The Definitive Agreement will provide for normal and customary terms and
provisions, including the mutual rights ‘of inspection.and due diligence, the nght to
consult with and rely upon the advice of independent legal counsel, and necessary
SmartGate approval of its independent Board of Directors foliowing the satisfaction of
the Conditions 10 -Merger. ‘ ‘

7. Conduct Pending Closing. Until the satisfaction of all Conditions to Merger: (i)
SmartGate and Radio Metrix may each conduct its respective business and enter into
agreements and issue shares of its capital stock without consultation with or approval of
the other party; (ii) the promissory note outstanding on the date hereof and due and
payable by SmartGate to Radio Metrix in the approximate amount of § BBO SO0,
plus accrued interest shall remain in place and not be paid during the term of this Letier
of Intent, except for a payment of $75,000 to be paid upon the execution of this Letter of
Intent or as otherwise requested by Radio Metrix. In ‘the event that the merger
contemplated in this Letter of Intent closes, the balance of the promissory note shall
remain unpaid (i.e. become a debt of SmartGate to its new wholly owned Sub) except as
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otherwise agreed by the parties; (iii) SmartGate and Radio Metrix shall equally share the cost
and use of two display booths at the ASIS trade show in early October 2001 where
. SmartGate and Radic Metrix shall each pursue their respective and separate business and due
diligence and share trade show contact information. To maximize the potential of the ASIS
trade show and due diligence opportunities, SmartGate may, but shall not be requirec to,
‘monitor or set-up phone number or web/E-mail address or intercept mail and phone messages
directed to Radio Metrix, unless otherwise directed by Radio Metrix. In connection
therewith, both SmartGate and Radio Metrix may separately refer to themselves as “Invisa
Companies”. SmartGate is considering the adoption of “Invisa™ as a trade or corporate name,
and accordingly, in the event this Letter of Intent does not close, Radio Metrix shall have no
continuing right in, or to use, the name “Invisa™; and (iv) SmartGate and Radic Metrix may
each, in their respective discretion and without notice to or consent of the other party hereto,
pursue, solicit, negotiate and close agreements and relationships, inciuding the sale of assets,
merger, joint ventures etc. any of which are, or maybe, inconsistent with the merger
described in this Letter of Intent. In the event either party hereto enters into an agreement or
relationship which is inconsistent with the merger provided for.in this Letter of Intent, this
Letter of Intent shall be automatically terminated and neither party shall have any interest in
_or claim against the other party or such agreement or relationship as @ result of this Letter of
Intent and the parties shall be restored to their contractual relationship which was in existence
immediately before the execution of this Letter of Intent.

8. Public Disclosure. Until the satisfaction of all Conditions to Merger, neither party
hereto will make any public release of information regérding this LOI nor the transaction
contemnplated herein without the express written permission of the party, unless said
disclosure is believed by said party to be required, necessary or appropriate in connection
with its/his/her legal, fiduciary or other requirements. ' T

9. Costs. Fach party hereto will be solely responsible for and will bear all of its/his own
costs and expenses associated “with this LOI and the preparation of the Definitive
Agreement, including, without limitation, expenses of legal counsel, accountants,
‘advisors and others. : ' '

10. Shareholder’s of Radio Metrix. The shareholders of Radio Metrix join this agreement
to:.(i) consent to the merger; (i) waive dissenters rights; (iii) covenént and agree that,
following the merger contemplated herein, such shareholders will have no claim against
and no nght, title or imterest in or to (except as granted as part of the Merger
Consideration and Additional Merger Consideration) Radic Metrix or its assets
(inciuding, but not limited to no debt, claim, causé of action, receivable, ownership or
interest in patenis or other intellectual property, marketing right, current or accrued
salary, expense advance or license) and each Radioc Metrix Shareholder’s interest and
clgim in Radio Metrix and its assets shall be limited to their respective ownership of
Rzdio Metrix Common Stock; (iv) fully disclose all conflicts of interest due to the
overlapping ownership and management of Messrs Michael, Duffey and Dolan in both
SmartGate and Radio Metrix; and (v) fully disclose that Duffey and Dolan PA has a
conflict of interest of imterest because of the overlapping ownership and management
- rerest of both Messrs. Duffey and Doian in both SmartGate and Radic Metnx, that
Duffey and Dolan PA has represented neither SmartGate, Radio Metrix nor the
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shareholders of Radio Metrix in connection with the preparation of this Letter of Intent o1

any matter relating thereto, and that all parties including SmartGate, Radio Metrix, the’

independent Board of Directors of SmartGate and the sharenclders of Radio Metrix are

advised to and should consult with independent legal counsel in connection with this -
Lerter of Intent and the merger contempiated herein.

Should you find the terms and provisions set forth in this LOI acceptable, please execute e
We will begin the preparation of Definitive

and return to me signifying your agreement.
Agreement for mutual review by the parties.

SmartGate, Inc,

By .
Edmund C. King, Director
By -
* Robert Knight, Director
AGREED by Radio Metrix:

Radio Metrix, Inc.

ﬁgfﬁ Michael, Président
By . // //@
/%ﬁe}ﬂmuﬂ’ey, Cl)éirman '

By: S/KMJQWZ

AGREED by Radio Metrix Sharehoiders:

A e 2

Stephen A. Michzel, Shareholder |

William Dolan, Share : -

Roberi T. Roth, Shareholder 7

Willizm Dolan, Trustee as Sharehoider

William Dolan, Trustee as Shareholder

www.safetysensor.com
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sharehoiders of Radio Metrix in connection with the preparation of this Letter of Intent or
any matter relating thereto, and that zl) parties including SmartGate, Radio Metrix, the
independent Board of Directors of SmartGate and the shareholders of Radio Metrix are
advised to and should consult with independent legal counsci in connecton with this
Letter of Intent and the merger comemplatad herem

Should you find the terms and provisions set forth in this LOI acceptable, please cxecutc
and refum to me sxgmfymg your agreement. We will begin the preparation of Definitive ~
Agreement for mutual review by the parties. :

‘SmartGa.u:, Inc.

By:

By:

Robert Knight, Director - ) - : C R _
AGREED by Radio Metrix: AGREED by Radic Metrix Shareholders:
Radip Metnx, Inc.

. Stephen A Michael, Shareholder

By: -
Steven A. Michsel President
William Dolan, Shareholder B
By:
Samuel S. Duffey, Chairman
Robert T. Roth, Sharekolder
William Delan, Trustee as Sharsholder
William Dolan, Trustee as Shareholder l
4200 Independence Court, Sarasota, Florida 34234 E-mai} — corporate@safetysensor.com wmv.safetysenso::,com
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shareholders of Radio Metrix in comnection with the preparation of this Letter of Intent or
any matter relating thereto, and that all parties including SmartGate, Radio Metrix, the
independent Board of Directors of SmartGate end the shareholders of Radio Metrix are
advised to and should comsult with independent legal counsel in, connection with this
Letter of Intent and the merger contemplated herein. ’

Shoutd you find the terms and provisions set forth in this LOT acceptable, please execute
and return to me signifying your agreement. We will begin the preparation of Definitive
Agreement for mutual review by the parties,

SmartGate, Inc.

By o) . N |
Edmund C. King, Director ' - .- 7, . . B
By: . ‘ - | | |
Robert Knight, Director : - o e
AGREED by Radio Metrix: o AGREED by Radio Metrix Sharehoiders:

Radio Metrix, Inc.

Stephen A, Michael, Shareholder
By:

Steven A, Michael, President T ' S o -

Wilkiars Dolan, Shareholder
By: ' ‘

Samuel S. Duffey, Chairman T ' B

Robert T, Roth, Shareholder

William Dolan, Trustee as Shareholder

William Dolan, Trustee as Shareholder

440D Independence Court, Sarasota, Florida 34234 E-mall - corporatef@safetysensor.com wmv.safetysensar.cbm
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Exhibit “B”

Quarterly Revenue Based Payment Agreement




QUARTERLY REVENUE BASED PAYMENT AGREEMENT

This Quarterly Revenue Based Payment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and,
entered into as of February __, 2002, by and among SmartGate Inc., a Nevada corporation
(“SmartGate”) and the persons and entities set forth on Exhibit “A” or their assigns (individually
a “Recipient” and collectively, the “Recipients”).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement of Merger and Plan of Reorganization by and
among SmartGate, SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition Corp. and RadioMetrix Inc.
(“RadioMetrix””) which was entered 'into as of February _, 2002 ("Merger Agreerent”) and
closed on even date herewith (“Closing™), the Recipients are entitled to a certain quarterly
revenue based payment; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto, by this Agreement, wish to memorialize and set forth the
terms, conditions and details of the quarterly revenue based payment arrangement,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the covenants, promises
and representations set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties intending to be legally bound, agree as
follows:

1. Certain Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have
the following respective meanings:

“Change of Control” shali mean that SmartGate has: entered into a merger
transaction in which SmartGate is not the survivor; or sold shares representing sixty (60%)
percent or more of the then outstanding shares in a transaction: or sold all or substantially all (i.e.
- seventy [70%] percent or more of the fair market value) of the RadioMetrix Technology related
assets; or sold or granted a master license to the RadioMetrix Technology to a third party in
which the stockholders are different than the stockholders of SmartGate.

“RadioMetrix Technology” shall mean all applications or uses (save and except
only those covered by the Sublicense Agreement between RadioMetrix and SmartGate, L.C.
dated February 14, 1997, as amended by Amendment dated March 2, 1999 which is incorporated
by reference) based upon or covered by the License Agreement between RadioMetrix and SDR
Metro Inc. dated March 14, 1992 as amended by Amendment dated May 26, 1998 which is
incorporated by reference. The present or future validity or enforceability of the Sublicense
Agreement or the License Agreement shall not affect their use for the definitional purpose as set
forth herein. ' -

“Revenue Based Payment” shall mean a quarterly revenue-based payment equal
to seven (7%) percent of all Revenue from the RadioMetrix Technology. .

“Revenue from the RadioMetrix Technology” shall mean all revenue of any
description, including but not limited to, revenue from product sales, licenses, sublicenses,
royalties, leases, asset sales, joint ventures or other consideration, payments, income Or revenue
derived from or related to the RadioMetrix Technology.

“Super Majority” shall mean the holders of seventy-five percent (75%) of the
Recipients’ entitlement to the Revenue Based Payment or Termination Payment, which shall




include any of the Recipients’ respective heirs, successors or assigns who acquire 2ll or any part
of the entitlement of a Recipient.

“Termination Payment” shall mean a one-time payment in an amount equal to the
full commercial value of the Revenue Based Payments determined pursuant to Paragraph 4 of
this Agreement which, once paid in full, has the result of terminating SmartGate’s ongoing
obligation to pay Revenue Based Payments under this Agreement.

2. Revenue Based Pavment.

a. Until terminated by a Termination Payment pursuant to this Agreement,
SmartGate shall pay to the Recipients the Revenue Based Payment as defined herein.

b. Each Revenue Based Payment shall be paid within fifteen (15) calendar
days following each fiscal quarter of SmartGate.

c. Unless otherwise agreed by SmartGate and the Super Majorlty, each
Revenue Based Payment shall be paid one-half (1/2) in cash and one-half (1/2) in SmartGate
common stock. The SmartGate common stock shall be valued at seventy-five (75%) percent of
the average closing market price for the thirty (30) calendar days immediately preceding the end
of the applicable quarterly period.

d. . In the event any Revenue Based Payment is not paid when due, such
unpaid Revenue Based Payment(s) shall accrue interest at the lower of eighteen (18%) percent or
the amount permissible under law per annum from the due date until the date said Revenue
Based Payment (or Revenue Based Payments) is paid in full.

e. Annually, the Quarterly Revenue Based Payments made shall be reviewed
by SmartGate’s independent public accountants, which shall provide the manner of calculation
and the amount of payment due for the year. The Recipients shall have the nght to
independently audit said calculation. If any payment is underpaid by greater than ten percent
(10%) of the amount that should have been paid, SmartGate shall immediately pay the unpaid
amount with interest on such unpaid amount at the lower of eighteen percent (18%) or the
amount permissible under law per annum from the date the unpaid amount should have been
paid until it is paid in full.

f The Revenue Based Payment shall be made to the Re01p1ents (or their
respecnve heirs, successors or assigns) in the following amounts:
Name % of the Revenue Based
Payment Being Paid
Stephen A. Michael 42.535953
Elizabeth Rosemary Duffey Imrevocable Trust 21.267976
Under Agreement Dated the 29 day of July 1998
Spencer Charles Duff‘ey Irrevocable Trust Under 21.267976
Agreement Dated the 29" day of July 1998
Robert T. Roth 10.066844
William W. Dolan 4.861251




Ll

g Any assignment by a Recipient of part or all of their interest in the Revenue
Based Payment shall be effective upon delivery of said assignment in written form acceptable to
SmartGate, :

3. Term and Termination Pavment.

a. This Agreement and SmartGate’s obligation to make Revenue Based
Payments shall continue until terminated by mutual agreement of the parties or until terminated
pursuant to Paragraphs 3(b) and 3(c) hereof.

b. SmariGate may terminate its oblipation to make future Revenue Based
Payments by making a one-time payment to the Recipients {or their respective heirs, successors
or assigns in interest) of the Termination Payment as determined pursuant Paragraph 4.

c. Should SmartGate enter into a transaction invelving a Change of Control
of SmartGate, SmartGate shall, prior to the closing of such transaction, notify the Recipients in
writing of the anticipated Change of Control transaction. The Super Majority of the Recipients
shall, within twenty (20) calendar days after the receipt of such notice, elect, in the exercise of
their sole discretion, to: (i) require SmartGate to terminate its obligation pursuant to Paragraph
3(b) by meking the Termination Payment thereby terminating SmartGate’s ongoing obligation
under this Agreement to make Revenue Based Payments, In the event of such election, the
Termination Payment shall be made in full before the closing of the Change of Control
transaction, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Super Majority of the Recipients; or (ii)
require that this Agreement and SmartGate’s ongoing obligation to make Revenue Based
Payments shall continue as an express obligation of the surviving entity or the entity which gains
control over SmartGate or its assets.

d. The Termination Payment shall be paid to the Recipients (or their
respective heirs, successors or assigns) in the same percentage amounts as the Revenue Based
Payments are paid.

e. Unless otherwise agreed by SmartGate and the Super Majority, the
Termination Payment shall be paid one-half (1/2) in cash and one-half (1/2) in SmartGate
commen stock. The SmartGate common stock shall be valued at seventy-five (75%) percent of
the average closing market price for the thirty (30) calendar days immediately preceding the date
of the Termination Payment. ‘

4. Determination of the Amount of the Termination Payment. _ o
a. The amount of the Termination Payment shall be determined by appraisal.
b. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by SmartGate and the Super Majority

of the Recipients, the appraisal shall reflect the full commercial value of the entitlement to
receive Revenue Based Payments for the duration of this Agreement. The determination of full
commercial value shall not be adjusted for current or past relationships between the parties, past
Revenue Based Payments, other consideration paid under the Merger Agreement or equity
interests of the Recipients in SmartGate. The appraisal shall take into consideration the future
prospects of the RadioMetrix Technology, the present as well as future product applications and
the potential of future revenue assuming reasonable financial support for product development,
product introduction, marketing and sales support. Further, the appraisal shall take into
consideration the potential of future Revenue Based Payments over the full term of the
entitlement (including, but not limited to, potential product sales, license, royalty, joint venture
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and other revenue) from products or technology applications which are then commercialized and
future or potential applications.

c. The appraisal shail be performed Dy an appraisor mutually acceptable to
SmartGate and the Super Majority. In the event SmartGate and the Super Majority cannot agree
upon who the appraisor shall be, then SmartGate shall select an appraisor and the Super Majority
shall select an appraisor, and those two appraisors shall select a third appraisor and that third
appraisor shall be the appraisor to determine the amount of the Termination Payment based upon
the criteria set forth in Paragraph 4(b) above, .

S. Recipients Remedies. SmartGate’s obligation to make the Revenue Based
Payments constitutes a material element of this Agreement. SmartGate acknowledges that, in the
absence of a breach by Radio Metrix, SmartGate shall not fail or refiise to make any Revenue
Based Payments when due or otherwise challenge its obligation to make the Revenue Based
Payments. Such failure, refusal or challenge by SmartGate would be wholly inconsistent with
the intentions of the parties entering into this Agreement and could be grounds for bad faith.
Any failure by SmartGate to timely make the Revenue Based Payments when due or any
challenge to the legality or enforceability of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to
be a material breach of this Agreement entitling the Recipients to ‘seek damages and specific
performance under the arbitration provision of this Agreement.

6. Acknowledgment of Present and Future Conflicts of Interest

a. SmartGate has been fully advised of the conflicts of interest of the
Recipients and Duffey & Dolan, P.A. (collectively, the “Conflicted Parties™). SmartGate has had
full access to all books, records and other documents of RadioMetrix and to ask questions of
RadioMetrix’ officers and directors. SmartGate appointed an Independent Committee of its
Board of Directors (the “Independent Committee of Directors”), and has vested said Independent
Committee of Directors with full and complete authority to negotiate, perform due diligence and,
in its sole discretion, to enter into and close this Agreement and the Merger Agreement. The
conflicts of interest of the Conflicted Parties were expressly waived by the Independent
Committee of Directors. Further, the Independent Committee of Directors hereby waives: (1)
any defense to the future enforceability or validity of this Agreement arising out of or relating to
the conflicts of interest of the Conflicted Parties; and (i) any claim or cause of action which may
be brought by SmartGate against the Conflicted Parties based upon or related to the conflicts of
interest. '

b. Following the Effective Time of the Merger Agreemen, SmartGate shall
conduct its business, including all aspects relating to the commercialization, development,
product introduction, product marketing and the establishment of product and licensing pricing
of the RadioMetrix Technology in a fashion deemed by the Board of Directors to be in the best
interest of SmartGate and its stockholders without regard to the interests of the Recipients or
with regard to the Merger Consideration and Additional Merger Consideration issued under the
Merger Agreement. The Recipients hereby acknowledge the absolute discretion of SmartGate
and its Independent Committee of Directors to make any and all decisions regarding the manner
:n which the RadioMetrix Technology shall be commercialized and hereby waive any right to
object thereto. In the event that the Board of Directors identifies any matter before the Board or
SmartGate which involves a conflict of interest between SmartGate and the Recipients, the
decision or matters relating to or affected by said conflict of interest shall be exclusively and




solely resolved by an Independent Committee of Directors appointed by the Board of Directors..
Such Independent Committee of Directors shall have full access to independent legal counsel

and independent advisors, including financial advisors. In all such matters, including matters -
relating to the creation of an Independent Committee of Directors or the determination of

whether a conflict of interest may be involved, Recipients who are directors or officers of

SmartGate shall abstain. Any determination as to whether a conflict of interest exists shall be

determined by the Independent Members of the Board of Directors with all interested or

conflicted Directors abstaining.

7. Arbitration. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this
Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be exclusively settled by binding arbitration before the
American Arbitration Association situated in Tampa, Florida before a panel of three (3)
arbitrators. All aspects of the arbitration shall be govemed by the rules then in effect of the
American Arbitration Association. Arbitration shall be the sole and exclusive manner for

' resolving all disputes hereunder. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrators may be
entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. Each party shall pay its respective share of the
fees, costs and expenses billed by the American Arbitration Association and the arbitrators, and
the prevailing party shall recover from the non-prevailing party all of the prevailing party’s costs, -
expenses and fees it incurred in connection with the arbitration, including reasonable attorneys’
fees.

8. Assignment.

a. SmartGate shall not assign this Agreement without first obtaining the -
written permission of the Super Majority.

b. Any one or all of the Recipients may assign this Agreement without the
permission of SmartGate.

9. Notices. All notices and cther communications hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be deemed given if delivered personally or by commercial delivery service, or mailed by
registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) or sent via telecopy to the parties at the
following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):

. (2) If to SmartGate:
To:  Independent Committee of Directors
SmartGate Inc.
4400 Independence Court
Sarasota, Florida 34234

Attention: Independent Committee Member, Edmund C. King
Fax: (941)355-9373

Copy to:
Spitzer & Feldman, P.C.
405 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Attention; Steven A. Sanders
Fax: (212)838-7472

(b) If to Recipients:

_




To: The addresses set forth on Exhibit “A”.

10.  Rules of Construction. The provisions of Section 8 of the Indemnity Agreement
to which this Agreement is attached as Exhibit “A” are incorporated herein by this-reference and -
made an integral part hereof.

11. Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in.
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. This Agreement may be executed by the parties
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an
original but all counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument, Facsimile
signatures to this Agreement are permitted and shall be deemed the same as the original
signature of the signing party for all purposes. h h

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by
themselves or their duly authorized respective officers or representatives, all as of the date first
1 above written.

SmartGate Inc. Recipients
a Nevada Corporation

‘Stephen A. Michael

By: -

Its:

Spencer Charles Duffey Irrevocable
Trust w/a/d July 29, 1998

William W. Dolan, Trustee

Elizabeth Rosemary Duffey
Irrevocable Trust wa/d July 29, 1998

William W. Dolan, Trustee

Robert T. Roth

William W. Dolan




Exhibit “A”
Recipients

Stephen A. Michael
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236

Spencer Charles Duffey Irrevocable
Trust u/a/d July 29, 1998

¢/o William W, Dolan, Trustee

416 Burns Court

Sarasota, Florida 34236

Elizabeth Rosemary Duffey Irrevocable
Trust uwa/d July 29, 1998

c/o William W, Dolan, Trustee

416 Burns Court

Sarasota, Florida 34236

Robert T, Roth
6008 Bay Valley Court
Orlando, Florida 32819

- William W. Dolan
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236
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ASSIGNMENT

WHEREAS, __SDR Metro Inc. ~ , a corporation of the State of _Ohio _ . having its
principal place of business at _ 27367 Tungsten Road Euclid, Ohio 44132 , hereinafter called

Assignor, has title to the United States Patent Number 5,337,039,

WHEREAS, Radio Metrix Inc., a corporation of the State of _ Florida having its

principal place of buéincss‘at '44OOI Independence Court, Sarasota, Florida 34234 , desires to

acquire the entire right, title and interest in and to said patent.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of Oﬁe Dollar (§1.00) and other
good and valuable considerations, receipt whereof is hereby acicnowlcdged, Assignor by these
presents does sell, assign and trensfer unto said Assignee, its successors and assigns, all right, titlé

and interest in the United States of America to said patent, including all extensions, reissue patents,

and corresponding foreign equivalents and all inventions covered by seid patent.

Assignor hereby 'agrees to execute any and all papers, including further assignment

documents of any and all kinds in any and all countries, and to perform any and all acts which

assignee may deem necessary to secure thereto the rights herein assigned, sold and set over.




Assignor further represents and warrants that it has not granted any rights inconsistent with

the rights granted herein.

Zfé:i‘ﬁ)@T AN

Title: tsa cQ,..,:

State of O‘M—J )

_ 188
County of CW}QJL”“IQ&’ )
n this R‘(’L day of Dﬂmﬂﬂﬁ’u , 200 Q__, before me personally appeared
4 4.8, %ﬂuw ,to e knoano be the person named in and who executed the above

iristrument and acknowlcdged that he executed the same for the uses and purposes therein
mentioned.

| ' Notary Public
(SEAL) O e . .

.- . DIANE M. FLOWER
- . Notary Public, State of Ohlo, Cuy. Cty.
' s : My Commission Explres Apr. 2, 2005

TEAM .
P 10002/03

.{5"’
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Sublicense Agreement

- This SUBLICENSE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into by and
between Radio Metrix, Inc. (" "), a Florida Corporation, and SmartGate, LC ("SGIM a
Plonda Corporation as of this y of February, 1997.

WITNESSETH.

WHEREAS, RM] entered into a License Agresment with SDR Metro Incorporated ("SDR
Metro") an Ohio Corporation, on March 14, 1992 (the "SDR Metro License Agent™), pursuant to
which SDR Metro granted RMI the exclusive, perpetual, worldwide right to commercialize,
manufacture, sell, market, apply and utilize the Technology described in said License Agreement
for 2ll apphcauons and ‘

WHEREAS, the License Agree,mem berween SDR Metro and RMI pemurs thc Sublicense
by RMI to entities with which it is affiliated, such as SGI; and .

'WHEREAS, RMI and SGI wish td enter into this Sublicense Agreement pursuant to the
terms and conditions set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, in hend received, including
the mutual covenants and prozruses of the parties as set forth in this Agreement, the parties mutually
agree as follows: o N

1. . Sublicense. RMI hereby grants SGI the exclusive, perpetual, worldwide right to -

commercialize, manufacture, sell, market, apply, and utilize the Technology as defined in the SDR
Metro License Agreement for (but only for) the following applications: parking barriér gates,

“sliding gates, swinging gates, vehicler traffic control, vehicler parking and commercial/industrial

overhead doors (excluding residential garage doors) [the "Sublicensed Applications"]. -

2. License of Trademark. R.M[ hereby grants SGI the exclusive right to use the
Registered Trademark "SmartGate” duting the teym of this Sublicense Agreement provided
however, that this license shall not restrict or impede the right of RMI to use the name "Smart" in
combination with any other words in connection with producrs other than the Subhcensed

Applications.

3. Terms. The term of this Sublicense Agreement shall ‘be perpetual providing that

SGI commences the sale of products incorporating the Technology for one or more Sublicensed -

Applications within six (6) months from the date hereof and providing that SGI's efforts to

commercialize the Technology- continue on a basis which is not interrupted by any intervening

period of more than ninety (50) days.
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4. ' Rovaltv. SGI agrees to timely pay to SDR Metro the royalty required by the SDR
Metro License Agreement for products sold pursuant to this Sublicense Agreement. SGI shall

‘comply with all accounting and reporting requirements and all other applicable requirements of the

SDR Metro License Agreement. Both RMI and SDR Metro shall have the right to inspect the
books and records of SGI at any reasonable time. In addition to the royalty due and payable to
SDR Metro, SGI shall pay on or before the tenth (10th) day of each month, any additional royalties
due by RMI. to non-affiliated third parties as a result of the products mamufactured or sold by SGI.

5. . Control Over Product. SGI shall take reasomable precautions to assure that no
product manufactured by it is offered for sale, sold, or used for any use other than Sublicensed
Applications 2s defined herein. Further, SGI agrees to consistently enforce strict quality control
programs and warranty programs to reasonably assure customer satisfaction.

6. Insurance. SGI agrees commencing ninety (90) days from the date. hereof to
maintain product liability insurance in the minimum amount of $1;000,000 per occurrence and to
name RMI and SDR Mefro as co-insured on said insurance at no cost to RMI or SDR Metro.

7. Representations and” Warranties of RMI. RMI makes the following
representations and warrandes to SGI, each of which shall survive the closing: (a) RMI has .
obtained the consent of SDR Metro for this Sublicense Apreement and has full right and authority
to enter into this Sublicense Agreement; (b) RMI agrees to assist SGI in the defense of the
Technology and any patents describing the Technology from any infringement upon the fights of a

third party; (c) the Sublicense granted herein hereby does not reguire the approval of any other

party, except SDR Mefro and does niot violate or breach any agreement or obligation to which RMI
is a party or to which the Technology is subject; and (d) RMI shall not, during the term of this
Sublicense Agreement, offer or sell products incorporating the Technology for any Sublicensed
Application;

8. Representations and Warranties of . SGI.  SGI makes the following
representations and warranties to RMI, each of which shall survive the closing: (a) SGI has full
right and authority to enter into this Sublicense Agreement; (b) SGI will exercise its best efforts and
good faith to commercialize the Technology for the applications described herein; and (¢) SGI will
not, during the term of this Agreement and for a period of one (1) year thereafter, compete with the -
Technology, whether for the Sublicensed Applications sublicensed hereunder or other uses. For .

. purposes hereof, competition shall mean designing, developing, marketing, commercializing or
- manufacturing any product or any Technology which has 2 use or function similar to that served or

which may be served by the Technology being sublicensed hereunder (the "Competitive Actvity™)
or serving as an Officer, Director, Owner, Partmer, Shareholder, Agent or Empioyee of any such
entity engaged in such Competitive Activity.

9. Waiver of Interest and Future Invention Agreement. SGI irrevocably,
perpetually and absolutely assigns and relinguishes to:RMI ali right, title, claim or interest which
SGI has or may in the future have 1o any products or technologies related to or which are




considered inventions, improvements, modifications or alterafions to the Technology being
- soblicensed hereunder. In the event of any such improvement, modification, alteration or new
invention developed by or discovered by SGI, SGI shall cooperate with and assist RMI in obtaining
patents or otherwise protecting same. RMI hereby grants a Sublicense to SGI to utilize the
invention, improvement, modification or alteration in perpetuity without additional compensation
for any use which is in support of the Sublicensed Application but for no other use. SGI shall
require each of its Employees to enter into a Waiver of Interest and Future Invention Agreement to

carry out and implement this Paregraph.

"z;;‘;-;e'b

10. Termination. This Sublicense Agreement may be lerminated by RMI upon a
material breach of this Agreement by SGI which is not cured within thirty (30) days after written
notice. ‘ : :

11.  Assicnment or Sublicense. This Agreement shall not be assigned nor any
Sublicense granted by SGI without the prior written permission of RMI. RMI reserves the sight to
assign its interest in this Agreement without prior approval from SGIL

12.  Arbifration. Any dispute arising under. this Agreement shall be resolved solely by
binding arbitration before the American ‘Arbitration Association. Any party commencing the
arbitration may select the location of the arbitration hearing, which may be located either.
Cleveland, Ohio, or Sarasota, Florida. The findings of the arbitration panel shall be final and -
binding and shall constitute the sole and exclusive means for resolving any disputes under this
Agreement. The determination of the arbitration panel may be reduced to a Final Judgment in an

}‘__'1 court of competent jurisdiction. _ _ ‘

13.  Miscellaneous. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the Paries .
and shall not be amended or otherwise zltered, except in writing, and executed by the Parties
hereto.” This Agreement shall not be construed more stringently against any Party, regardless of
which Party may have served as a draftsman hereof. This Agreement and the Resolution of any -
dispute shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties set their hand and seal on the day and year first

above written. : |
RADIO ME @
i 1/L

SMARTGATE, L.C.

]?y://é/w__/éfsﬁi

wisarveriallcanusclamarigaic\Sublicense Agrecment2.doc
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Consent and Approval

~ COMES NOW, SDR Metro, Inc., and for good and valuable consideration in hand
received, consents to the attached Sublicensed Agreement between Radio Metrix, Inc. and
 SmartGate, L.C. SDR Metro agrees to recognize SmartGate, 1..C. as a bonafide Sublicenses
whose rights shall remain exclusive and perpetual so long as the Sublicense Application remains in
effect and SGI is not In material breach of the obligation to pay royalties to SDR Metro, Inc.,
notwithstanding any subsequent modifications, amendments or termination of the License
Agreement between SDR Metro and Radio Metrix, Inc. dated March 14, 1992. By approving this
Sublicense, SDR Metro, Inc. does not release Radio Metrix, Inc. from any of its Duties or
obligations under the License Agreement between SDR Metro, Inc. and Radio Metrix, Inc. dated
March 14, 1992. SDR Metro agress that the Sublicense Agreement between SDR Metro, Inc, and
Radio Metrix, Inc. dated March 14, 1992, is legally binding and is not in breach and is not subject
to any, defenses, claims or actions which may be asserted by SDR Metro. The license between
SDR Metro, Inc. and RMI remains in good standing and is the exclusive, perpetual worldwide
might for RMI to commercialize, manufacture, §ell, market, apply and utlize the TECHENOLOGY
for all applications. The only application for which final product development has been completed
is the "parking gate" product for which commercial sales were commenced within eighteen (18)
months following final product development and for which RMI's rights under the License
o Agreement remains exclusive. )

SDRMI
SDR Metro, Incorporated

By: ér”-\ r‘ (Qﬁﬂj f A‘/"/ ;7: pkf«f:/

David LIgyd E. Jones, President Dite .
‘ (/ /2t/59
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A:iﬂ:NDMENT TO SUBLICENSE ACREEMENT

i

Tels AMENDMUN iito Sublicense Agreernent (The “amendment”) is made and entered inro
by and berween Radio Meurix, Inc. ("RMI™), a Florida corporation, and SmantGare, L.C. (“SGI”),
a Florida limited liability %;ompany as of March 2, 1999,

; WITNESSETH

. | - .
WHEREAS, RMI and SGI emered into a Sublicense Agreement dated as of February 14,
1997 (the “Sublicense Agreemem™), and :
I

WHEREAS, RMI zlnd SGT wish 1o enter into this Amendment to. (i) comett the scrivener’s
crror in the introducto ) paragraph of the Sublicense Agreemem where SmartGare, LC. Is
referred to as a Flarida ,éﬂrporaﬁnn‘, {ii} 1o expand the applications of the Technology under the
Sublicense Agreement; (iti) clarify thar SGI has been granied the exclusive right 10 use any
servicemark or rademark that RMI registers during the 1erm of the Sublicense Agreement, (iv)
confirm that 2t the right! and obligations of SG1 under the Sublicease Agreemem will inore o
the surviving emity in the event SGI merges oF enters imo 2 business combination with an entity:
and (v) confirm that the Sublicense Agreement is in good standing and not subject 1o any claims

1

or acis of default. . -

[

~ Now TH:EREFOR‘E, for ¢ood and valuable consideration, o hand received, including the
murual covenants and pr‘f)miscs of the parties as set forth in this Agreement, the parties mutuatly
agree 2s follows:

4

1. The in;rofduc:tcry paragraph of the Sublicense Agreemcnt is hereby amended 10
reflect that SmartGare, 1;.C. is a Florida limited liability company.
I
2 Paragraph 1. of the Sublicense Agrecment is hereby amended by adding the
following. | '

“The Sutlpliccnse granted on February 14, 1997 (“Original Sublicense™) is
expanded as hereinafier provided. Without limiting in any fashion the
Qriginal Sublicense grant, SmartGate is also gramed hereby the exclusive
perpetal worldwide right 10 commercialize, mamufacture, seli, marker and
apply The Tgchnology as defined in the Original Sublicense Agrecment for
safery appliqations to prevemt strikes, daimage, injury or entrapmem from-the
movement of ell closure devices (the “Extended Sublicense”™). Withour
Yimiration of the foregoing, the Extended Sublicense grant expressly includes
residential garage doors. elevaior doers and vehicle windows and doors. The
Extended Sublicense wrant is expressly iimited o applications of the
Tec‘nno!ogy; lo prevent sinkes, demage, injury or emtrapment from moving
closure devices.”

. R .

i
3. Paragraph 2. Of the Sublicense Agreement is hercby amended by
replacing the existing ﬁaragraph wizh the following: '

|
l
i
!




"2 License of Trademark RMI hereby grants SGI the exclusive right
1o use, during the term of this Sublicense ‘Agreement, any servicemark of
wrademark containing the name “SmartGare” which RMI has or will register
during the termp of this Sublicense Agreement provided; however, that this
license shall nat restrict or imapede the right of RMI 10 use the name “Smar”
in combinarion: with any other words in connection with producis other than
The Extended St.lblic:nsed Applications

i ‘ ‘

3 ercer. In the event SGI merges or emers into some other form of business

combination with any emity ("Surviving Eatity”), the pariies acknowledie and agree that all of

the rights and obligations iof SGI under the Sublicense Agreement and this Amendment thereto,
shall auromarically inure, }n all respects, to the Surviving Entity. .

4 RMI Est bel. RM] hereby cerufies, acknowledges and agrees, that as of the date
of this Amendment, the Sublicense Agreement and zit rights gramed thereunder 10 SGI remain in
full foree and effect, and f.that SGI is in full compiiance with all the terms and conditions of the
Sublicense Agreement and that the Sublicense Agreement is in good standing and is not subject
10 any claims or acts of default whatsoever. '

etween this Amendmenmt and the Sublicense Agreement shall

5. Any inconsistency b
erms znd conditions of the Sublicense

be construed in favor of this Amendment. All remaining 1
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

]

i

In WITNESS WHEREOCFT, the parties have set their hand an
writien above. ;

d seal as of the day and year first

SMaRTGATE, L C.

[P R
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Registration Rights Agreement




REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

This Registration Rights Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of
February __ , 2002, by and among SmartGate Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company” or
“SmartGate”) and the persons and entities set forth on Exhibit “A” (individuaily a “Purchaser”
and collectively, the “Purchasers™).

1. Securities Laws Representations and Covenants of Purchaser.

The registration rights granted pursuant to Sections 2.2 and 2.3 of this Agreement shall
have no force or effect until such time as the Company has otherwise become obligated to file
periodic or other reports pursuant to Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “1934 Act™).

2. Registration Rights.

2.1 Certain Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall
have the following respective meanings:

(a) “Commission” shall mean the Securities and Exchange
Commission or any other federal agency at the time administering the Securities Act.

{b) “Common Stock” shall mean the common stock, $.001 par value,
of the Company.

{c) “Form S1”, “Form SB-17, “Form S-2”, “Form SB-2” and “Form S-
3” shall mean Form S-1, Form SB-1, Form S-2, Form SB-2 or Form S-3, respectively,
promulgated by the Commission or any substantially similar or successor form then in effect.

() “Merger Agreement” shall mean that certain Agreement of
Merger and Plan of Reorganization by and among SmartGate, SmartGate/RadioMetrix
Acquisition Corp., and Radio Metrix Inc. (“RadioMetrix™) dated as of February , 2002,

(d) “Purchaser” or “Purchasers” shall mean the persons and entities
listed on Exhibit “A” and their assigns and successors in interest.

The terms “Register,” “Registered” and “Registration” refer to a
registration effected by preparing and filing a Registration Statement in compliance with the
Securities Act, and the declaration or ordering of the effectiveness of such Registration
Statement.

(e “Registrable Securities” shall mean the Shares until such time as
such shares become eligible for sale under subparagraph (k) of Rule 144 or any successor
thereto. ‘

¢3] “Registration Expenses” shall mean all expenses incurred by the
Company in complying with Section 2, including, without limitation, all federal and state
registration, qualification and filing fees, printing expenses, fees and disbursements of counsel
for the Company, blue sky fees and expenses, the expense of any special audits incident to or
required by any such Registration and the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for the
Selling Shareholders, as selling shareholders.




(g) “Registration Statement” shall mean Form S-1, Form SB-1, Form
S-2, Form SB-2 or Form S-3, whichever is applicable.

(h) “Restriction Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to any
Registrable Securities, the earliest of (i) the date that such Registrable Securities shall have been
Registered and sold or otherwise disposed of in accordance with the intended method of
distribution by the seller or sellers thereof set forth in the Registration Statement covering such
securities or transferred in compliance with Rule 144, and (ii) the date that an opinion of counsel
to the Company containing reasonable assumptions (which opinion shall be subject to the
reasonable approval of counsel to any affected Purchaser) shall have been rendered to the effect
that any restrictive legend placed upon the Registrable Securities under the Securities Act can be
properly removed and such legend shall have been removed.

(i) “Rule 144” shall mean Rule 144 promulgated by the Commission
pursuant to the Securities Act and any successor rules thereto.

@ “Purchasers” shall mean, collectively, the Purchasers, their
assignees and transferees, and individually, a Purchaser and any transferee or assignee of such
Purchaser.

(k) “Securities Act” shall mean the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. -

4} “Selling Expenses” shall mean all underwriting discounts and
selling commissions applicable to the sale of Registrable Securities pursuant to this Agreement.

(m) “Selling Shareholders” shall mean a holder of Registrable
Securities who requests Registration under Section 2 herein and whose Shares are sold under a
Registration Statement.

() “Shares” shall mean the Common Stock issued or to be issued to
the Purchasers pursuant to the Merger Agreement or any closing document or agreement
thereunder including, but not limited to the Quarterly Revenue Based Payment Agreement and
the Promissory Notes.

(o)  “Super Majority of the Purchasers” shall mean 75% of the shares
of Common Stock issued pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

2.2  Required Registration. On two occasions, upon the demand of a Super
Majority of the Purchasers for the Company to effect the Registration of Registrable Securities,
the Company shall effect such Registration; provided however, that the Company shall not be
obligated to effect any Registration except in accordance with the following provisions:

(a) The Company shail not be obligated to file and cause to become
effective more than two (2) registration statements in which Registrable Securities are Registered
pursuant to this Section 2.2.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may include in each
such Registration requested pursuant to this Section 2.2 any authorized but unissued shares of
Common Stock (or authorized treasury shares) for sale by the Company or any issued and
outstanding shares of Common Stock for sale by others, provided however, that, if the number of
shares of Common Stock so included pursuant to this clause (b) exceeds the nmumber of
Registrable Securities requested by the Super Majority of Purchasers demanding such
Registration, then such Registration shall be deemed to be a Registration in accordance with and
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pursuant to Section 2.3; and provided further however that the inclusion of such previously
authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock by the Company or issued and outstanding.
shares of Common Stock by others in such Registration shall not prevent the Super Majority of . .
Purchasers demanding such Registration from registering the entire number of Registrable
Securities requested by them.

(c) The Company shall not be required to file a registration statement
pursuant to this Section 2: (i) within six (6) months after any other registration by the Company
(other than under “Excluded Forms,” as defined in Section 2.3 (2) below) or (ii) for six (6)
months after the demand for registration under this Section 2.2 if the Company is then engaged
in negotiations regarding a material transaction which has not otherwise been publicly disclosed,
or such shorter period ending on the date, whichever first occurs, that such transaction is publicly
disclosed, abandoned or consummated.

23 Piggyhack Registration

(a) For so long as Purchasers hold Registrable Securities, each time
that the Company proposes to Register a public offering solely of its Common Stock (not
including an offering of Common stock issuable upon conversion or exercise of other securities),
other than pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-4 or Form S-8 or similar or successor
forms (collectively, “Excluded Forms™), the Company shall promptly give written notice of such
proposed Registration to the Purchasers, which shall offer such Purchasers the right to request
inclusion of any Registrable Securities in the proposed Registration.

®) Each Purchaser shall have ten (10) days or such longer period as
shall be set forth in the notice from the receipt of such notice to deliver to the Company a written
request specifying the number of shares of Registrable Securities such Purchaser intends to sell
and the Purchaser’s intended plen of disposition.

(9] In the event that the proposed Registration by the Company is, in
whole or in part, an underwritten public offering of securities of the Company, any request under
Section 2.3 (b) may specify that the Registrable Securities be included in the underwriting on the
same terms and conditions as the shares of Common Stock, if any, otherwise being sold through
underwriters under such Registration,

(d) Upon receipt of a written request pursuant to Section 2.3 (b), the
Company shall promptly use its best efforts to cause all such Registrable Securities to be
Registered, to the extent required to permit sale or disposition as set forth in the written request.

{e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the managing underwriter of an .
underwritten public offering, determines and advises in writing that the inclusion of all
Registrable Securities proposed to be included in the underwritten public offering, together with
any other issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock proposed to be included therein by
holders other than the holders of Registrable Securities (such other shares hereinafier collectively
referred to as the “Other Shares™), would interfere with the successful marketing of the securities
preposed to be included in the underwritten public offering, then the number of such shares to be
included in such underwritten public offering shall be reduced, and shares shall be excluded from




such underwritten public offering in a number deemed necessary by such managing underwriter,
first by excluding shares held by the directors, officers, employees and founders of the Company
who are not Purchasers, and then, to the extent necessary, by excluding Registrable Securities
participating in such underwritten public offering, pro rata based on the number of shares of
Registrable Securities each such non-Purchaser holder proposed to include.

® All Shares that are not included in the underwritten public offering
shall be withheld from the market by the holders thereof for a period, not to exceed 12 months
following a public offering, that the managing underwriter reasonably determines as necessary in
order to effect the underwritten public offering. The holders of such Shares shall execute such
documentation as the managing underwriter reasonably requests to evidence this lock-up.

2.4 Preparation and Filing. If and whenever the Company is under an obligation
pursuant to the provisions of this Section 2 to use its best efforts to effect the Registration of any
Registrable Securities, the Company shall, as expeditiously as practicable:

() prepare and file with the Commission a Registration Statement
with respect to such Registrable Securities and use its best efforts to cause such Registration
Statement to become and remain effective in accordance with Section 2.4( b) hereof, keeping
each Selling Shareholder advised as to the initiation, progress and completion of the
Registration;

{b) prepare and file with the Commission such amendments and
supplements to such Registration Statements-and the prospectus used in connection therewith as
may be necessary to keep such Registration Statement effective for nine months and to comply
with the provisions of the Securities Act with respect to the sale or other disposition of all
Registrable Securities covered by such registration statement;

{c) furnish to each Selling Shareholder such number of copies of any
summary prospectus or other prospectus, including a preliminary prospectus, in conformity with
the requirements of the Securities Act, and such other documents as such Selling Shareholder
may reasonably request in order to facilitate the public sale or other disposition of such
Registrable Securities;

(d) use its best efforts to register or qualify the Registrable Securities
covered by such registration statement under the securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdictions
as each Selling Shareholder shall reasonably request and do any and all other acts or things
which may be necessary or advisable to enable such holder to consummate the public sale or
other disposition in such jurisdictions of such Registrable Securities; provided however, that the
Company shall not be required to consent to general service of process, qualify to do business as
a foreign corporation where it would not be otherwise required to qualify or submit to liability
for state or local taxes where it is not liable for such taxes; and

{e) at any time when a prospectus covered by such Registration Statement
is required to be delivered under the Securities Act within the appropriate period mentioned in
Section 2.3 (b) hereof, notify each Selling Shareholder of the happening of any event as a result
of which the prospectus included in such Registration, as then in effect, includes an untrue




statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein not misleading in the light of the circumstances then
existing and, at the request of such seller, prepare, file and furnish to such seller a reasonable
number of copies of a supplement to or an amendment of such prospectus as may be necessary
so that, as thereafter delivered to the purchasers of such shares, such prospectus shail not include
an untrue statement of a material fact or omit 1o state a material fact required to be stated therein
or necessary to make the statement therein not misleading in the light of the circumstances then
existing,

2.5  Expenses. The Company shall pay all Registration Expenses incurred by
the Company in complying with this Section 2; provided however that all underwriting discounts
and selling commissions applicable to the Registrable Securities covered by registrations
effected pursuant to section 2.2 hereof shall be borne by the seller or sellers thereof, in
proportion to the number of Registrable Securities sold by such seller or sellers.

_ 2.6  Information Furnished by Purchaser. It shall be a condition precedent to
the Company’s obligations under this Agreement as to any Selling Shareholder that each Selling
Shareholder furnish to the Company in writing such information regarding such Selling
Shareholder and the distribution proposed by such Selling Shareholder as the Company may
reasonably request.

2.7 Indemnification.

271 Company’s Indemnification of Purchasers. The Company shall

indemnify each Selling Shareholder, each of its officers, directors and constituent partners,
trustees, and each person controlling such Selling Shareholder, and each underwriter thereof, if
any, and each of its officers, directors, constituent partners, trustees, and each person who
controls such underwriter, against all claims, losses, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect
thereof) suffered or incurred by any of them, to the extent such claims, losses, damages or
liabilities arise out of or are based upon any untrue statement (or alleged untrue statement) of a
material fact contained in any prospectus or any related Registration Statement incident to any
such Registration, or any omission (or alleged omission) to state therein a material fact required
to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, or any violation
by the Company of any rule or regulation promulgated under the Securities Act applicable to the
Company and relating to actions or inaction required of the Company in connection with any
such Registration; and the Company will reimburse each such Selling Shareholder, each such
underwriter, each of their officers, directors and constituent partners, trustees, and sach person
who controls any such Selling Shareholder or underwriter, for any legal and any other expenses
as reasonably incurred in connection with investigating or defending any such claim, loss,
damage, liability or action; provided however, that the indemnity contained in this Section 2.7.1
shall not apply to amounts paid in settlement of any such claim, loss, damage, liability or action
if settlement is effected without the comsent of the Company (which consent shall not
unreasonably be withheld); and provided however, that the Company will not be liable in any
such case to the extent that any such claim, loss, damage, liability or expense arises out of or is
based upon any untrue statement or omission based upon written information furnished to the
Company by such Selling Shareholder, underwriter, controlling person or other indemnified
person and stated to be for use in connection with the offering of securities of the Company.
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2.7.2 Selling Shareholder’s Indemnification of Company. Each Selling
Shareholder shall indemnify the Company, each of its directors and officers, each underwriter, if.
any, of the Company’s Registrable Securities covered by a Registration Statement, each person
who controls_the Company or such underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act, and
each other Selling Shareholder, each of its officers, directors and constituent partners, trustees,
and each person controlling such other Selling Shareholder, against all claims, losses, damages
and liabilities (or actions in respect thereof) suffered or incurred by any of them and arising out
of or based upon any untrue statement (or alleged untrue statement) of a material fact contained
in such Registration Statement or related prospectus, or any omission (or alleged omission) to
state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein not misleading, or any violation by such Selling Shareholder of any tule or regulation
promulgated under the Securities Act applicable to such Selling Shareholder and relating to
actions or inaction required of such Selling Shareholder in connection with the Registration of
the Regisirable Securities pursuant to such Registration Statement; and will reimburse the
Company, such other Selling Shareholders, such directors, officers, partners, persons,
underwriters © and controlling persons for any legal and any other expenses reasonably incurred
in connection with investigating or defending any such claim, loss, damage, Hability or action;
such indemnification and reimbursement shall be to the extent, but only to the extent, that such
untrue statement (or alleged untrue statement) or omission (or alleged omission) is made in such
Registration Statement or prospectus in reliance upon and in conformity with written information
furnished to the Company by such Selling Shareholder and stated to be specifically for use in
connection with the offering of Registrable Securities. Anything in the foregoing to the contrary
notwithstanding, in no event shall the aggregate obligations of a Selling Shareholder under this
Section 2.7.2 to all parties that may be entitled to indemnification hereunder exceed the amount
of proceeds received by such Selling Shareholder in connection with such offering of Registrable
Securities.

2.7.3 Indemnification Procedure.  Promptly after receipt by an
indemnified party under this Section 2.7 of notice of the commencement of any action which
may give rise to a claim for indemmnification bereunder, such indemnified party will, if a claim in
respect thereof is to be made against an indemnifying party under this Section 2.7, notify the
indemnifying party in writing of the commencement thereof and generally summarize such
action. The indemnifying party shall have the right to participate in and to assume the defense of
such claim, and shall be entitled to select counsel for the defense of such claim with the approval
of any parties entitled to indemnification, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties entitled to indemnmification shall have the, right to
employ, separate counsel (reasonably satisfactory to the indemnifying party) to participate in the
defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such
indemnified parties unless the named parties to such action or proceedings include both the
indemnifying party and the indemnified parties and the indemnifying party or such indemnified
parties shall have been advised by counsel that there are one or more legal defenses available to
the indemnified parties which are different from or additional to those available to the
indemnifying party (in which case, if the indemnified parties notify the indemnifying party in
writing that they elect to employ separate counsel at the reasonable expense of the indemnifying
party, the indemnifying party shall not have the right to assume the defense of such action or
proceeding on behalf of the indemmnified parties, it being understood, however, that the
indemnifying party shall not, in connection with any such action or proceeding or separate or




substantially similar or related action or proceeding in the same jurisdiction arising out of the
same general allegations or circumstances, be liable for the reasonable fees and expenses of more.
than one separate counsel at any time for all indemnified parties, which counsel shall be
designated in writing by the holders of a majority of the Registrable Securities).

2.7.4 Coniribution. If the indemnification provided for in this Section
2.7 from an indemnifying party is unavailable to an indemnified party hereunder in respect to
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses referred to herein, then the indemnifying
party, in lieu of indemnifying such indemnified party, shall contribute to the amount paid or
payable by such indemnified party as a result of such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or
expenses in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the indemnifying
party and indemnified party in connection with the statements or omissions which result in such
losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses, as well as any other relevant equitable
considerations. The relative fault of such indemnifying party and indemnified party shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement
of a material fact or the omission or alleged omission to state a material fact relates to
information supplied by such indemnifying party or indemnified party and the parties” relative
intent, knowledge, access to information supplied by such indemnifying party or indemnified
party and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission. The amount paid or
payable by a party as a result of the losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses referred to
above shall be deemed to include any legal or other fees or expenses reasonably incurred by such
party in connection with investigating or defending any action, suit, proceeding or claim.

3. Covenants of the Company. The Company agrees to:

(a) Notify the holders of Registrable Securities included in a Registration
Statement of the issuance by the Commission of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of
such Registration Statement or the initiation of any proceedings for that purpose. The Company
will make every reasonable effort to prevent the issuance of any stop order and, if any stop order
is issued, to obtain the lifting thereof at the earliest possible time.

(b) If the Common Stock is then listed on a national securities exchange, use
its best efforts to cause the Registrable Securities to be listed on such exchange. If the Common
Stock is not then listed on a national securities exchange, use its best efforts to facilitate the
reporting of the Registrable Securities on NASDAQ or AMEX.

(c) Take all other reasonable actions necessary to expedite and facilitate
disposition of the Registrable Securities by the holders thereof pursuant to the Registration
Statement.

(d)  With a view to making available to the holders of Registrable Securities
the benefits of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act and any other rule or regulation of
the Commission that may at any time permit the Purchasers to sell securities of the Company to
the public without registration, the Company, after it has become obligated to file periodic or
other reports pursuant to Section 13 of the 1934 Act agrees to:
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(1) make and keep public information available, as those terms are
understood and defined in Rule 144, at all times after 90 days after the effective date of the first.
Registration Statement filed by the Company for the offering of its securities to the general
public;

(iy  file with the Commission in 2 timely manner all reports and other
documents required of the Company under the Securities Act and the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “1934 Act”™); and

(iti)  furnish to each holder of Shares, so long as such holder of Shares
owns any Shares, forthwith upon written request: (a) a written statement by the Company that it
has complied with the reporting requirements of Rule 144 (at any time after 90 days after the
effective date of the first registration statement filed by the Company), the Securities Act and the
1934 Act (at any time after it has become subject to such reporting requirements), (b) a copy of
the most recent annual or quarterly report of the Company and such other reports and documents
so filed by the Company and (c) such other information as may be reasonably requested and as is
publicly available in availing the holders of Shares of any rule or regulation of the Commission
which permits the selling of any such securities without registration.

(e) Prior to the filing of the Registration Statement or any amendment thereto
(whether pre-effective or post-effective), and prior to the filing of any prospectus or prospectus
supplement related thereto, the Company will provide each Selling Shareholder with copies of all
pages thereto, if any, which reference such Selling Shareholder.

4. Acknowledgment of Present and Future Conflicts of Interest.

a. SmartGate has been fully advised of the conflicts of interest of the
Purchasers and Duffey & Dolan, P.A. (collectively, the “Conflicted Parties™). SmartGate has
had full access to all books, records and other documents of RadioMetrix and to ask questions of
RadioMetrix” officers and directors. SmartGate appointed an Independent Committee of its
Board of Directors (the “Independent Committee of Directors™), and has vested said Independent
Commiittee of Directors with full and complete authority to negotiate, perform due diligence and,
in its sole discretion, to enter into and close this Agreement and the Merger Agreement. The
conflicts of interest of the Conflicted Parties were expressly waived by the Independent
Committee of Directors. Further, the Independent Committee of Directors hereby waives: (i)
any defense to the future enforceability or validity of this Agreement arising out of or relating to
the conflicts of interest of the Conflicted Parties; and (ii) any claim or cause of action which may
be brought by SmartGate against the Conflicted Parties based upon or related to the conflicts of
interest.

b. Following the Effective Time of the Merger Agreement, SmartGate shall
conduct its business, including all aspects relating to the commercialization, development,
product introduction, product marketing and the establishment of product and licensing pricing
of the RadioMetrix Technology in a fashion deemed by the Board of Directors to be in the best
interest of SmartGate and its stockholders without regard to the interests of the Purchasers or
with regard to the Merger Consideration and Additional Merger Consideration issued under the
Merger Agreement. The Purchasers hereby acknowledge the absolute discretion of SmartGate
and its Independent Committee of Directors to make any and all decisions regarding the manner
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in which the RadioMetrix Technology shall be commercialized and hereby waive any right to

object thereto. In the event that the Board of Directors identifies any matter before the Board or.
SmartGate which involves a conflict of interest between SmartGate and the Purchasers, the

decision or matters relating to or affected by said conflict of interest shall be exclusively and

solely resolved by an Independent Committee of Directors appointed by the Board of Directors.

Such Independent Commitiee of Directors shall have full access 1o independent legal counsel

and independent advisors, including financial advisors. In all such matters, including matters

relating to the creation of an Independent Committee of Directors or the determination of
whether a conflict of interest may be involved, Purchasers who are directors or officers of
SmartGate shall abstain. Any determination as to whether a conflict of interest exists shall be

determined by the Independent Members of the Board of Directors with all interested or

conflicted Directors abstaining.

5. Arbitration. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this
Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be exclusively settled by binding arbitration before the
American Arbitration Association situated in Tampa, Florida before a panel of three (3)
arbitrators. All aspects of the arbitration shall be governed by the rules then in effect of the
American Arbitration. Association. Arbitration shall be the sole and exclusive manner for
resolving all disputes hereunder. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrators may be
entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. Each party shall pay its respective share of the
fees, costs and expenses billed by the American Arbitration Association and the arbitrators, and
the prevailing party shall recover from the non-prevailing party all of the prevailing party’s costs,
expenses and fees it incurred in connection with the arbitration, including reasonable attorneys’
fees.

6. Agsionment.

a. SmartGate shall not assign this Agreement without first obtaining the
written permission of the Super Majority of the Purchasers.

b. Any one or all of the Purchasers may assign this Agreement without the
permission of SmartGate. ‘

7. Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be deemed given if delivered personally or by commercial delivery service, or mailed by
registered or certified mail (retun receipt requested) or sent via telecopy to the parties at the
following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):

(a) If to SmartGate:

To:  Independent Committee of Directors
SmartGate Inc.
4400 Independence Court
Sarasota, Florida 34234
Attention: Independent Committee Member, Edmund C. King
Fax: (941) 355-9373
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Copy to:

Spitzer & Feldman, P.C.

405 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10022
Attention: Steven A. Sanders
Fax: (212) 838-7472

{(b)  Ifto Purchasers:
To: The addresses set forth on Exhibit “A”.

8. Rules of Construction. The provisions of Section 8 of the Indemnity Agreement
to which this Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B” are incorporated herein by this reference and
made an integral part hereof.

9. Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. This Agreement may be executed by the parties
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an
original but all counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimile
signatures to this Agreement are permitted and shall be deemed the same as the original
signature of the signing party for all purposes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed this Agreement by its duly
authorized officer and the Purchasers have executed this Agreement as of the date first above
written.

SmartGate Inc.
a Nevada Corporation

Stephen A. Michael

N : _ “Spencer Charles Duffey
By: Trrevocable Trust v/a/d
Iis: July 29, 1998

William W. Dolan, Trustee

Elizabeth Rosemary Duffey
Trrevocable Trust w/a/d
July 29, 1998

William W. Dolan, Trustee

Robert T. Roth

William W. Dolan




Exhibit “A»
Purchasers

Stephen A. Michael
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236

Spencer Charles Duffey Irrevocable
Trust w/a/d July 29, 1998

c/o William W. Dolan, Trustee

416 Burns Court

Sarasota, Florida 34236

Elizabeth Rosemary Duffey Iirevocable
Trust wa/d July 29, 1998

c/o William W. Dolan, Trustee

416 Bumns Court

Sarasota, Florida 34236

Robert T. Roth
6008 Bay Valley Court
Orlando, Florida 32819

William W. Dolan
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236
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INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

THIS INDEMNITY AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of
February __, 2002, by and among SmartGate Inc., a Nevada corporation (‘SmartGate”) and the
persons and entities set forth on Schedule “A” and their successors and assigns in interest,
collectively hereinafter referred to as (“Indemnitees™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, On even date herewith, SmartGate, SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition
Corp. and Radio Metrix Inc. (*RadioMetrix™) closed an Agreement (“Merger Agreement™) of
Merger and Plan of Reorganization (“Merger™); and

WHEREAS, the Indemnitees, at the time of the closing of the Merger were either
officers, directors cr shareholders of RadioMetrix and SmartGate or affiliates of the Indemnitees;
and

WHEREAS, simultaneous with the closing of the Merger, SmartGate and the
Indemnitees {except Duffey & Dolan, P.A.) executed a Quarterly Revenue Based Payment
Agreement, dated February __, 2002 (*Quarterly Revenue Based Payment Agreement™), a form
of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and a Registration Rights Agreement dated February
__, 2002 (“Registration Rights Agreement”), a form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”;
and

WHEREAS, the Indemnitees, by virtue of their positions with or holdings in SmartGate
and RadioMetrix have conflicts of interest with respect to the Merger, and will have future
conflicts of inferest resulting from the merger transaction or agreements delivered at the closing
of the merger transaction or the ongoing commercialization of the RadioMetrix Technology.
SmartGate or its subsidiary following the merger transaction; and

WHEREAS, the Independent Committee of the Board of Directors of SmartGate,
consisting of the non-interested Board members with respect to the merger transaction
(“Independent Committee™) were made aware of said conflicts of interest and same were fully
disclosed by the Indemnitees prior to the entering into and closing of the Merger; and

WHEREAS, the Independent Committee, in order to induce the Indemnitiees o enter into
and close the Merger and continue to hold positions with SmartGate, following the Merger,
determined that it was appropriate for SmartGate to indemnify the Indemnitees in accordance
with the terms and conditions as set forth hereinbelow; and

WHEREAS, the Indemnitees have required that they be indemnified by SmartGate as a
condition to entering into and closing the merger transaction with SmartGate.

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to induce the Indemnitees to enter into and close the
Merger and continue to hold positions with SmartGate and in consideration of their continued
service and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
acknowledged, and the parties intending to be legally bound agree as follows:
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1. Recitals. The Recitals are true and correct and are made an integral part of this .
Agreement.
2. Indemnification. FExcluding a breach of any representations, warranties or

covenants of RadioMetrix as set forth in the Merger Agreement, or a breach of any
representations, warranties or covenants of the Indemnitees as set forth in the Quarterly Revenue
Based Payment Agreement or the Registration Rights Agreement, SmartGate agrees to
indemnify and hold the Indemnitees and RadioMetrix and each of them jointly and severally,
harmiess from any claim, loss or action, including costs and legal fees, resulting from or in any
fashion related to: (i) the merger transaction; (i) the Merger Agreement and all closing
documents and agreements including, but not limited to, the Quarterly Revenue Based Payment
Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreement; (iii) conflicts of interest to the extent
disclosed to the Independent Committee; and (iv) future conflicts of interest relating to the future
implementation of the Merger Agreement and closing documents and agreements including, but
not limited to, the Quarterly Revenue Based Payment Agreement and the Registration Rights
Agreement or any aspect relating to the commercialization of the RadioMetrix Technology to the
extent that such conflict 'of interest is or has been disclosed to the Independent Committee.

3. Further Indemnification. SmartGate further agrees to indemnify and hold the
Indemnitees and RadioMetrix and each of them jointly and severally, harmless from any claim,
action or expense arising out of or relating to any contract or liability relating to RadicMetrix set
forth in the Merger Agreement, Schedules and Exhibits thereto, closing documents or otherwise
disclosed in writing to the Independent Committee ag part of the Merger.

4 Acknowledgment of Present and Future Conflicts of Interest.

a. SmartGate has been fully advised of the conflicts of interest of the
Indemnitees. SmartGate has had full access to all books, records and other documents of
RadioMetrix and to ask questions of RadioMetrix® officers and directors. SmartGate appointed
an Independent Committee, and has vested said Independent Committee with full and complete
authority to negotiate, perform due diligence and, in its sole discretion, to enter into and close
this Agreement and the Merger Agreement. The conflicts of interest of the Indemnitees were
expressly waived by the Independent Commiitee. Further, the Independent Committee hereby
waives: (i) any defense to the fiture enforceability or validity of this Agreement arising out of or
relating to the conflicts of interest of the Indemnitees; and (it} any claim or cause of action which
may be brought by SmartGate against the Indemnitees based upon or related to the conflicts of
interest.

b. In an effort to mitigate any potential conflict of interest which may arise
subsequent to the date hereof, the Indemnitees acknowledge and agree that following the
Effective Time of the Merger Agreement, SmartGate shall conduct its business, including ail
aspects relating to the commercialization, development, product introduction, product marketing
and the establishment of product and licensing pricing of the RadioMetrix Technology in a
fashion deemed by the Board of Pirectors to be in the best interest of SmartGate and its
stockholders without regard to the interests of the Indemnitees or with regard to the Merger
Consideration and Additional Merger Consideration issued under the Merger Agreement. The
Indemnitees hereby acknowledge the absolute discretion of SmartGate and its Independent
Committee to make any and all decisions regarding the manner in which the RadioMetrix
Technology shall be commercialized and hereby waive any right to object thereto. In the event




that the Board of Directors identifies any matter before the Board or SmartGate which involves 2
contlict of interest between SmartGate and the Indemnitees, the decision or matters relating to or
affected by said conflict of interest shall be exclusively and solely resolved by an Independent
Committee appointed by the Board of Directors. Such Independent Committee shall have full
access to independent legal counsel and independent advisors, including financial advisors. In
all such matters, including matters relating to the creation of an Independent Committee of
Directors or the determination of whether a conflict of interest may be involved, all Indemnitees
including, but not limited to, Messrs. Michael, Duffey and Deolan, shall abstain. Any
determination as to whether a conflict of interest exists shall be determined by the Independent
Members of the Board of Directors with all interested or conflicted Directors abstaining.

S. Arbitration. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this
Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be exclusively settled by binding arbitration before the
American Arbitration Association situated in Tampa, Florida before a panel of three (3)
arbitrators.. All aspects of the arbitration shall be governed by the rules then in effect of the
American Arbitration Association. Arbitration shall be the sole and exclusive manner for
resolving all disputes hereunder. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrators may be
entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. BEach party shall pay its respective share of the
fees, costs and expenses billed by the American Arbitration Association and the arbitrators, and
the prevailing party shall recover from the non-prevailing party all of the prevailing party’s costs,
expenses and fees it incurred in connection with the arbitration, including reasonable attorneys’
fees. ) ~

6. Assignment,

a. SmartGate shall not assign this Agreement without first obtaining the
writien permission of the Indemnitees.

b. Any one or all of the Indemnitees may assign this Agreement without the
permission of SmartGate.

7. Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be deemed given if delivered personally or by commercial delivery service, or mailed by
registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) or sent via telecopy to the parties at the
following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):

(a) If to SmartGate:

To: - Independent Committee
SmartGate Inc.
4400 Independence Court
Sarasota, Florida 34234
Attention: Independent Committee Member, Edmund C. ng
Fax; (941)355-9373 - :

Copy to:
Spitzer & Feldman, P.C.
405 Park Avenue
New York, NY 16022
Attention: Steven A. Sanders
Fax: (212) 838-7472




(b)  Ifto Indemnitees: .
To: The addresses set forth on Schedule “A™,

8. Rules of Construction. This Agreement shall not be construed more stringently
against any party regardless of which parties may have served as the drafisman. SmartGate
hereby acknowledges and agrees that neither Duffey & Dolan, P.A. nor any of its principals,
including Mr. Duffey and Mr. Dolan, provided any legal advice or representation to SmartGate
or its Independent Committee regarding this Agreement or any aspect of the merger transaction.
SmartGate acknowledges that Spitzer & Feldman PC served as its legal counsel in connection
with this Agreement and all aspects of the merger transaction. Duffey & Dolan, P.A. and its
principals were expressly authorized to represent RadioMetrix in connection with this
Agreement and the merger transaction. Duffey & Dolan, P.A. and its principals were expressly
released by the Independent Committee from any conflicts of interest which may result {or which
may have the appearance of resulting) from: Duffey & Dolan, P.A’s representation of
SmartGate in matters unrelated to this Agreement; Duffey & Dolan, P.A’s representation of
RadioMetrix in the past and in the merger transaction; the merger transaction, or the ownership
of stock, officership or directorship in SmartGate or RadioMetrix by any principal of Duffey &
Dolan, P.A. The provisions of this section are incorporated by reference into and made an
integral part of the Rules of Construction sections of the Quarterly Revenue Based Payment
Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreement which are attached as Exhibits “A” and “B”
respectively,

9. Miscellaneous. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. This Agreement may be executed by the parties
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an
original but all counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimile
signatures to this Agreement are permitted and shall be deemed the same as the original
signature of the signing party for all purposes. This Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect until terminated by mutual agreement of the parties hereto.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOPF, the parties flave executed this Agreement as of the date first

above written.

SmartGate Inc.
a Nevada Corporation

Indemnitees

By:
Iis:

Samue] S. Duffey

Stephen A. Michael

Spencer Charles Duffey Irrevocable
Trust u/a/d July 29, 1998

William W. Dolan, Trustee

Elizabeth Rosemary Duffey
Irrevocable Trust u/a/d July 29, 1998

William W. Dclan, Trustee

Raobert T. Roth

William W. Dolan

Duffey & Dolan, P A.

Its:




Schedule “A”
INDEMNITEES

Samuel S. Duffey
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236

Stephen A. Michael
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236

Spencer Charles Duffey Irrevocable Trust

w/a/d July 29, 1998, and William W. Dolan, Trustee
416 Burns Court

Sarasota, Florida 34236

Elizabeth Rosemary Duffey Irrevocable Trust
w/a/d July 29, 1998 and William W, Dolan, Trustee
416 Burmns Court

Sarasota, Florida 34236

Robert T. Roth
6008 Bay Valley Court
Orlando, Florida 32819

William W. Dolan
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236

Duffey & Dolan, P.A.
416 Burns Court
Sarasota, Florida 34236



Schedule 1.6(a)(ii)

$800,000 Promissory Note




Form of $800,000 Note

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES OR “BLUE SKY”
LAWS, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED,

PLEDGED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO

THE PROVISIONS OF SUCH ACT AND BLUE SKY LAWS OR AN EXEMPTION
THEREFROM IS AVATLABLE AS ESTABLISHED BY A WRITTEN OPINION OF
COUNSEL ACCEPTABLE TO THE MAKER.

SmartGate Inc.
PROMISSORY NOTE
$ , . .-Sarasota, Florida
February | 2002
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, SmartGate Inc., a Nevada corporation (the
“Maker™), promises to pay to the order of _(the “Payee™)
the principal sum of , . (% _) Dollars plus

interest in the amount specified below.

The principal amount of o 3 ) Dollars shall
be due and payable in full on April __, 2003.. This Promissory Note shall bear interest at seven
(7%) percent which shall be paid every thirty (30) days during the term of this Promissory Note,
on the last day of each thirty (30) day period during the term of this Promissory Note.

Interest hereon shall be calculated on the basis of a 360 day year applied to the actual
number of days elapsed until all accrued and unpaid interest is paid in full. All payments of
principal and interest hereon shall be payable in lawful currency of the United States.

If any interest payment or the principal payment is not actually received by the Payee on
or before the due date, the Maker agrees to pay Payee a late charge equal to a lesser of eighteen
(18%) percent per annum or the highest lawful rate per annum, on the delinquent amount until
paid.

Prepayment of the principal of this Promissory Note is permitted, in whole or in part, at
anytime, without premium or penalty of any kind.

This Promissory Note may not be changed orally, but only by an agreement in writing
signed by the parties against whom enforcement of any waiver, change, modification or
discharge is sought.

The holder of this Promissory Note and all successors thereof shall have all the rights of a
holder in due course as provided by the Florida Uniform Commercial Code and the other laws of
the state of Florida. Maker hereby waives demand, presentment, protest, notice of protest and/or
dishonor and all other notices or requirements that might otherwise be required by law. The
Maker promises to pay on demand all costs of collection, including reasonable attomneys' fees
and court costs, paid or incurred by Payee to enforce this Promissory Note upon an Event of
Default (as defined below) hereunder.




The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default” under this
Promissory Note:

a. the failure of the Maker to make any payment when due under this Promissory Note;

b. the institution of proceedings by or against the Maker under any state insolvency
laws, federal bankruptcy law, or similar debtor relief laws then in effect.

Upon an Event of Default which has not been cured within ten (10) business days from
the date of written notice by Payee, Payee may, at Payee's option and without notice, declare all
principal and interest due under this Promissory Note to be due and payable immediately. Payee
may waive any default before or after it occurs and may restore this Promissory Note in full
effect without impairing the right to declare it due for a subsequent default.

| SMARTGATE INC.

CORPCRATE
SEAL By:

Edmund Cklng .
Tts: Chief Financial Officer and
Independent Committee Member .




Schedule 1.6(b)(i)(a)

$4,500,000 Promissory Note




Form of $4,500,000 Note which will be issued by SmartGate Inc.
when the condition specified in Paragraph 1.6(b)(i) is satisfied

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES OR “BLUE SKY”
LAWS, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED,
PLEDGED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO
THE PROVISIONS OR SUCH ACT AND BLUE SKY LAWS OR AN EXEMPTION
THEREFROM IS AVAILABLE AS ESTABLISHED BY A WRITTEN OPINION OF
COUNSEL ACCEPTABLE TO THE MAKER.

SmartGate Inc.

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE

b
Sarasota, Florida
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, SmartGate Inc., a Nevada corporation (the
“Maker”) hereby promises to pay to the order of s
(the “Payee™), the principal sum of
(3 ‘ ) Dollars, plus interest at the rate specified below. The unpaid principal

balance outstanding from time to time shall bear interest prior to maturity at an annual rate of
interest equal to mine (9%) percent per annum, and all interest accrued on the outstanding
principal balance of this Promissory Note shall be due and payable as provided below.

The Maker hereby agrees to pay the entire amount due hereunder, including principal and
interest, sixty (60) months from the date of this Promissory Note (“Maturity Date”), on which
date all unpaid principal and interest due hereunder shall be paid in full. All payments shall be
applied first to interest on the unpaid balance and the remainder to principal.

If the payment of interest and the principal is not actually received by the Payee on or
before the Maturity Date, the Maker agrees to pay Payee a late charge equal to a Jesser of
eighteen (18%) percent per annum or the highest lawful rate per annum, on the delinquent
amount until paid.

This Promissory Note may not be changed orally, but only by an agreement in writing
signed by the parties against whom enforcement of any waiver, change, modification or
discharge is sought.

The holder of this Promissory Note and all successors thereof shall have all the rights of a
holder in due course as provided by the Florida Uniform Commercial Code and the other laws of
the state of Florida,

Maker hereby waives demand, presentment, protest, notice or protest and/or dishonor and
all other notices or requirements that might otherwise be required by law. The Maker promises to
pay on demand all costs of collection, including reasonable attorney's fees and court costs, paid
or incurred by Payee in enforcing this Promissory Note upon an Event of Default (as that term is
defined below) hereunder.




The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default” under this
Promissory Note:

(a) The failure of the Maker to make any payment when due under this Promissory )
Note;

(b)  The institution of legal proceedings by or against the Maker under any state
insolvency laws, federal bankruptcy law, or similar debtor relief laws then in effect.

Upon an Event of Default, Payee may, at Payee's option and without notice, declare all
principal and interest due under this Promissory Note to be due and payable immediately. Payee
may waive any Event of Default before or after it occurs and may restore this Promissory Note in
full effect without impairing the right to declare it due for a subsequent default.

Option to Convert Promissory Note into Shares

(2) At any time prior to the Maturity Date, Payee shall have the option (“Option”) to
convert the unpaid principal balance of this Promissory Note, together with all accrued interest,
into shares of common stock of the Maker at the conversion ratio of one share for each $5.00 of
unpaid principal and interest (*“Shares™).

(b In order to exercise this Option, the Payee shall surrender this Promissory Note to
the Maker, accompanied by written notice of the Payee’s intention to exercise this Option, which
notice shall set forth the principal amount of this Promissory Note to be converted (“Notice of
Conversion”). Within ten (10) business days of Maker's receipt of the Notice of Conversion and
this Promissory Note, the Maker shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Payee, written
confirmation that the Shares have been issued in the name of the Payee.

(c) Payee shall cooperate with Maker to ensure that any shares issued pursuant to this
Option will.be issued in compliance with federal and state securities laws or exemptions
therefrom. Unless otherwise registered under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended, the
certificates evidencing said shares shall reflect such legend restricting transfer as counsel for the
Maker may reasonably require.

(d)  The Maker shall at all times, take any and all additional actions as are necessary
to maintain the required authority to issue the Shares to the Payee, in the event the Payee
exercises the Payee’s rights under this Option. '

{e) The Shares to be issued upon the exercise of this Option to convert shall be
subject to and covered by the Registration Rights Agreement executed by the Maker as part of its
acquisition of RadioMetrix, Inc.

SMARTGATE INC.

CORPORATE
SEAL By:
Its:




Schedule 1.6(e)

Stephen A. Michael

42.535953%

Elizabeth Rosemary Duffey Irrevocable Trust

21.267976%

Spencer Charles Duffey Irrevocable Trust

21.267976%

Robert T. Roth

10.066844%

William W. Dolan

4.861251%

|
i
|




Schedule 2.5
RadioMetrix Consents and Approvals

e RadioMetrix’ Board of Directors

e RadioMetrix’ Shareholders

e Articles of Merger Filing with Secretary of Sate of Florida and Nevada




Schedule 2.9
RadioMetrix 2000 Federal Tax Return
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Form i 1 o u.s, Corporation Income Tax Return . OMB No, 15650123
_ Fer calendar year 2000 or tax year beginning | | ... L.l .ending 2000
a?ﬂp;g?aggvgmn slﬁ?ﬁ?w ¥ Instructions are separate. See page 1 for Paperwnrk Reduction Act Notice.
A Cheexifa: Use Name pMumbar, street, & room oF sulte no,  Cily or town, seie, and ZIP code | B Employer identification number
1 Consoldated fetm S RADTO METRIX, INC. : _ £5-0345382 )
Tz F “&“ﬂé’?ﬂlﬂ? . Other- C  Date incompomien _
3 aam%""’?'ﬁgq W or | 4400 INDEPENDENCE COURT ; 3/19/82
&.?&m, trummns} Iyp. SARASOTA FL 34234 D Tedal awsets (sas pags B of instructions)
E Checkappicsoie boeews (1) | | inllal retum (2)_1_|_Pioal ratom 3y | | cnange ctaddmss $ 382,724
1a Grossreptisales | ) b Lesz nn. & alowances | __Je Bap | ic )
2 Costofgoods sold (Schedule A, Jine 8) 2] - |
3 Gross profit Subtact line 2 fominete 3
4 Dividends (Scheaule C. ine 19) ..., e, N 4
come | B Wterest e 5 22,454
5 Gmssmns --------------------------- AR EEE T B
7 Gmsstoyahies e R SO I .
&  Capital gain nat income (attach Sch.DEom T2 e vea- L
8 Nat gain or {loss) from Form 4797, Part ), ing 18 {afiach Form 4787) | e s 8
10 ° Otherincome {soe page 8 of instructions-attach seheduie) s 10
11 Total income. Add fines 3 thraugh 10 » | 11 - 22,454
12 Compensation of officers (Sohedule B, Bm0d) | . i e —————————— 12
13 Salaries and wapes (128 eMPIOYMENt Codils) | e ceien e i een e b3S
14 Repairs ane MaiMenance | ... ... ...cccoeeieiieieeeneieaeeies e peerraeans e |18 i
15 BAOOEDES . .iiiiieieiieeeieaeiennenianns U .- -
1% Renals i SO . - i -
Deducliong 17 TaXes and iCANSAS | L i i ieas feetrarraraeenee.. BT 1,684
18 IntereSt | ...liiceeeei. TP UV 26
{5ou 19 Charimble contributions {see pape 11 of nstmchons for 10% Iimr:atmn) _____ e eiateer e 19 _
insyructlonsizo  Depreciation (abiach FOM 4B62) ..\, .\ |1iveeeiuecveseeennnia 120
lirmitstions |21  Less depreciation claimed on Schedule A and elsewhere onrewm Zia 21b o
23 Advertising | [ ceraeerrrtrireretrraTy o - =
24 Pension, pmﬁt—shznng, et:: plans ___________________________________ S .. 128
2% Employse benefltpragrams |, fe e e e USRI -
26 Other deductions (attach schedula) L oTeT X b 26 26,865
27  Total deductions. Add In. 12 twough 26 e P T 28,695 .
28 Taxable income before net operating loss deduction & specual deduc‘hans Subtrat:t line 27 from n. 11 28 ~-65,2471
2% Less: = Net operting loss (NOL), deduction (see page 13 ofinstr.) | 1 28a
b Special deductions (Scheduls C line20) . . .. 129D 25¢ —
30 Taxable income. Subtractline 25c fom ine 28 T ... |50 =6.241
31 Toml tax (Scheduled line 11) . e 31 :
32" Payments: o 19 overpaggom
‘b 2000 estimated tax payments 3z2b
€ Septapkrasepledior T [a2e Jd Bal W 324
Taxand | e Taxdeposhed wih Form 7004 32 |
Payments| § Gregit for tax paid on undistribuied capital gains (atiach Eomm 2439) 32
g Credit for Federal tax on fuels (attach Form 4 136). See instructions 32g 32h
33 Estimales tax panalty {see page 14 of instruclions). Chieck if Form 2220 is atached || .. r HEE
34 Tax due, if ine 32h is smaller than the total of ines 31 and 33, enter ameuntowed . s 34
a5  Owvarpayment If fine 32h is farger than the total of ines 31 and 33, enter amount overpaid |, 35
36 Enter amt of line 35 you want Credited to 2001 es!. tax Refunded» | 38
Sign F.‘é‘:'?:r BRI "’x?e"& o W?‘m e L AT hon of Wi, proparar has sny Rnowisogt. - "
Here } ] ? r} -0 } ‘
Slgnatureo! pificer i Thle
Preparers - Check if Preparer's SSN or PTIN
Paid signatuee } W} (:\ 3(—- & P fq C?/ Z.é) { solf-employed 1] PO0O210570 )
Preparer's  Fimns name (or RIES & FITCARRA, PA - ~ lem 59.2413568
Use Only yours if sot-ornployecs,p 4837 SWIFT ROAD SUITE 210 .| Poone
addrass, and Z)F code - SARASQOTA, FL 34231 _ n, © 941 -923-2537
) ) Form 1120 {zo00)
Gag,
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Fofm 1120 . f900) "RADIC METRIX, INC. £5-0345382 __Page2
Schedule A Cost of Goods Sold (See page 14 of mstructnons 8] -
Inventoly at beginning OF ¥eaT e et eitiiannaa e Ceres
Purchases | | ; . b emmraraeaaaeiaaas verreas eeveeran i aeen
Caost of tabor || R,
Addifional sechon 253#\ costs (atxach sr:heduia}
Otner costs (attach schedule) | e
Total. Add lines 4 theough 5 e e
Inventory atend Of YEBr e e
Cost of goods sold. Subtract ne 7 rom line 6. Ener here and on fine 2, page 1
Check all methods used for valuing ¢iosing inventory:
{® Cost 2¢ deseribed in Regulations sechion 1.479-3
] Lower of cost or markst as descsibed in Regulations saclion 1.471-4
(i) Otner (Specify method used and altach explanation)W e .
b Check if there was 2 writadown of subnormal goods 2s described in Regulations section 1.471-2{6) | ..., s T < -
€ Check if the LIFO inventory method was adopted this tax year for any goods (i checked, attach Form 970) . . . .. >
d  Ifthe LIFO irwantor'y method was used far this tax year, enter percentage (or amountsj of closing ]
inventory computed under LIFQ . f v e ettt sy Sef_ ..
& If prapeny is produced or acquired for resale, do the ruies of seclion 2B3A apply to the corporalion? . ... ... s : U Yes U No -
f  Was there any change in determining quantiies, cost, or valyations between opening and closmg invantory? If "Yes.
attech explanation . ﬂ Yes I"I No
Schedule C Dividends and Special Deductrons (See page 150f " (% Dividends ) %| (@ Soechldeductions
instructons.) received ) X 2 X (b)
41 Dividends from less-than-20%-owned domestic corporations that are subject fo the
70% deduclion {other than debi-inanced stock} . ... ... 70
Dividands from 20%-or-mora-owned domestic corporafions that are subjed iothe

80% deduction {other than debl-financed stock) T 80
See

o =t [ [th |8 (0 f03 fa

M N th D -

©w
1]

EN ]

Dividends on dabt-finonced stock of domestic & foreign corporations (section 248A) mstr, o A o
Dividends o certain preferred stock of iess-than-20%-ownad public utiities 42

Dividends on certain preferred stock ol Z0%-er-more-owned public utilities 48

Stvidends from lass-than-20%-owned foreign corporations and certzin FSCs that
are subjest to the 70% dedusion L, 70

7  Dividends from 2D%-or-mare-owned foreign corporations ang sartain FSCs that ‘
are subject to the 80% deduction i 80

[ I T T )

8  Dividends from wholly owned foraign subsidiaries subject to ths 100% deduclion (secﬁon 245(b)) | 100
'S Taotal. Agd lines 1 through 8. See page 16 of insfructions for imitation | . ...,
10  Dividends from domestic corporations resefved by a srmal] business investment

company oparating under the Small Business Investment Act of 1958 | . .. 160
11 Dividends from cortain FSGE that are Subject 1o the 100% e0ulion {section 245(c)1)} e ioo
12 Dividenda from affiend group membars subject to the 100% deduction {seciion 243aX3) ... .. 100
13 Other dividends from forelgn corporations not inctuoed on lines 3,6, 7, 8, er 11
14  Income from convallad foreign corporations under subpart F {att Fcrm(s).‘5471)' ,
15 Foreign dividend gross-up (S0CHON T8) | ...
18 C-pDIsc and former DISC dividends not included on lines 1, 2, or 3 {5echon 245(dp
17 o!her dw'dends --------------------------------------------------------------------
18  Deduction for dividends paid on certain preferre:! stock of public utiliies |
19 Yotal dividends. Add fines T through 17, Emter here and on line 4, page 1
20 Toal special deductions. Add fines 8, 10, 11, 12, and 18. Enter here and on line 28h, page 7 »
Schedule E Compensation of Officers {See instructions for line 12, page 1.)
MNote: Compiele Schedule E only if fota! receipts fine 12 plus lines 4 through 40 on page 1. Form 1120) are 500,000 or mare,

] ] (¢} Parcent of Percent Er coraDEum I
(.l.]"Nama of officer [b) Sneizl security number ﬁmen xda'ma L — 16 Prtneree {0} Armount of compsmsation )
3 . R 2% % ke B
% S %
%t % %
b % %
—_— % .- %4
2 Totalcompenrsafion of OffICEIS || e aana e
3 Compensation of officers claimed on Schedule A and elsewhere onrelum i
4 Sublractling 3 from line 2, Enterthe resutheroond on line 12, page1 . . . .., Ptieiiiiiiiies teinis B R
DAR ‘ : Form 1120 (2000
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Form 1120 (2003 RADIO MTRIK, INC. 65-0345382 Page 3
Schedule J Tax Computation (See page 17 of instructions.)
1 Check i the corporation is a member of & confrolied group {ss8 sections 1561 and 156%) __..._......... W L
Important: Members of a copiralied group, see instructions on page 17.
23 1f the bow an line 1 is checked, enier the corporation's share of the $50,000, 525,000, and $8,925,000 taxuble
income bragkets {in that order):
m s ! @ ls J o ls
b Entsr the corpnraucn's share of: 1} Additional 5% tax (nol more than $11 g5 s -
. {2) Additional 3% tax (ot more than $100,000 S
3 Income tex. Cheekifa quahﬁad personal service corporation under section 448{d)(2} (see page iy ..., » D 3 : o]
4 Alternative minimum tax (atach Fom 4626) . ..., e et et acaieeniereiaeeaans Virserreeeretniaoians j 5.
s Adcines3andd . ... e e e e L8 0
6z Foreign tax credit (attach Fom 1918} ... ... [ .- '
. b Possessions tax credit {attach Form 5735) ... R, I
¢ Check: D Nonconvantional source fuel credlt U E!EV crer:in {at, Form B834) Bc
d Generx husiness credit. Enter here & check which fnrms are att.: 3800
3488 5854 5478 B785 H 8830 BE26
8835 BB44 8845 BB4E 8820 8881 bd
e Gredit for prior year minimum tax (attach For B227) .. L BE
f Quaiified Zone cademy bond credit (atiach Form BSBO) ________________________ st
7  Total credits: Add lines Satwough 6f L icieiiiiaeerareeeeeas I 7
8 Subtactoe 7HOMINES . iiiceesioeeeesseinnenemeaaennenes RS 8
Personal holding company tax {attach Schedule PH {Form ':120}) . 9
1 Recapture tayes, Check iffom: ] Form42s5 [ Fom 861, - ] B
41 Total tax. Add fines B through 10, Enter here and online 31, page 1 ., Lol n 4]
Schedule K Other Information (See page 19 of msmchcns) ' IR :
1  Check mathod of accounling: a D Cash Yes|No If *Yes,” file Form 5452, Corporate Report of Ves| Mo
b X Accrual Nondividend Distribufions. -
¢ || Ower{specifi®™ . ..., T ' If this is 2 consolidated return, answer here for the
2. See page 21 of the nstructions and amer the' . parant corporation and on Foom 851, Affiliations
2 Businessacivityeode po.® 541580 Schedule, for each subsidiary.
b Businessooiviy? ' DEVELOPMENT ...
¢ ProductorserviceP SENSTING DEV. l_ CE ... .. T Al azny time during the tax year, did ane fureign person
3 Afihe ent of the tax yaar, did the c:)rporahon own, directly own, dirachy or indireclly, at least 25% of (a} the total
or intirectly, 50% or more of the voting stock of a domestit voling power of all classes of stock of the corporation
corporaton? (For rules of atribution, s¢e section 267(e).} ... it entitied to vote or () the twotal value of all casses of )
i “Yes,” attach a scheduie showing: {a} name and stock of the enrporation? ... ... s by
employer identification aumber {EIN), (b} percentage If "Yes.”
owned. and (o) taxable income ar {loss} before NOL and 2z Enter percentage ewned
. special Gaductions of such corporation for the tax year ’ b Enler owner's country®
ending with of within your tax year. - ¢ The corpoEton may h.ave to frle Form 5472, information
4 s the corporation a subsidiary in an affiiated group or a ' Returs of a 25% Foreign-Dwned U.S. Comporation or 2
parent-subsidiacy controlled growp? ..., e s X Foreign Corperation Engaged in 2 U.S. Trade or Busmess.
I “Yes,” enter name and EIN of the parent ' Enter numper of Forms 5472 attached [
COMBOrBON Y e 8  Check this box if the eorporation issued publicly oifered
S T FT TR T debt instruments with edginal issue discount -, »
5 A the end o:‘ Ihe tax year, did any lndwlduaf partnership, . if checked, the corporation may have o file Form 8281,
corporation, estate, or trust own, directly or indiractly, Inforrmation Retum for Publicty Offered Onginal issue
B0t or mare of the corporation’s voling stock? (For rules Discount instruments.,
of atiribution, see section 2B7{EL) | .. . .. ... eeeeee e X § Enter the amount of tax-exernpt interest received or
I "Yes.” attach a schedule showing name and identifying acorued during the taxyear®™ & ... o
pusnber. (Do not inciude any information atready amered 10 Enter the aumbar of shareholders at the end of the :ax
in 4 above.) Enter percentage owned® e year ({75 or fewen) | B TN
&  During this tax year, did the corporation pay dmdenﬁs 44 It the com. has an NOL for the tax year and is elaamg
J {other than stock dividends and diziributions in exchanpe io forego the carryback pariod, check here »
for stock) in excess of the corporation’s current and 42  Enter the avaiable NOL carryover from prior tax yesrs
accumuiated eamings and profits? (See sactions 301 and {Do not reduce it by any deduction on line
BIBY e e, T 2P S e '

Note: If the curpn:atmn. ot any t:rne during the tax year, had assels or operated 2 business in z foreign country or LS. possesszon it may be
required to atfach Schedulie N (Fnrm 13200, Forelcm Cperations of U.8. Comorahons 1o :hus retum. See St Schedule N for datails.

= ‘ — e T Form 1120 (zono)
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1058 . .
Fomn 1120 (2000 RADTO METRIX, INC. ' 7 §5-0345382 — . Page &
Schedule L Balance Shests per Books | ___ Besinnin citaxyear ) 7 End of f2x year
Assets ' 2) o © @
"4 Cash o 98 398

_____ R T LR R LR R RS iy

za Trade notes and acsounts recaivable
. b Lessallowance forpadidebls
Inventonies )

e

....... P i ] - e el —

U.S. povemment obligations |

3
4
. & Teat-axempt securifios (see lnstmmxons} _
& Other current assals STMT 2 500 o 7,000
7
3
]

Loans to sharsholders ... ™ ' 8,243 : 8,249
Mottgage and real estate loans | : '
Otnerinvestments | ....oooees e
40z Builfings and other “depreciable ascets | 13,889 13,999
b Lassacmmuta!eddapmaaixon_"____;__ 13,9589 . _ o 13,898 o)
411z Depletoble BBSEIS . ... ..eo.eienees ' -
b Less accumnyiatad deplefion ...
12 land (eelof any amorizaldon) . ..
133 Intangible assets (amorlizable only)

b Less accumulated amoriization || ... T & o 1 _ ] .
44  Otner assets (attachschy  STML 3 383,638 o 267,077 .
15 Totalassets . oooccoieiooii: 392,4861 . ' 382,724

Liahillties and Shareholder’s Equity _ C o
16 Accourts paYabIE ... ...eieeeneeees B, 994 8,516
) 47  Mongagns, notes, bangs payable In lege han 1 yaar . ' :_
48  Other cument liabittes _  STMT 4 6,900 6,900
19  Lpans from shareholders ... ... ‘ 9,159 o §,159

20 Mongapes. notes, bonds payabie in 1 year oy mare
25 Otherizgbilas{ar.sch) . ... ...,
72 Caphalstocx; a Preferred stock

b Commanstock . 7_777575 575 ' 575 578
21 Additional paiiin capital ..., ' 355,425 355,425
24 Ratained esmings-Appropriated | ..., . :
25  Retzined esrmings-Unappropriated . 11,4331 o 3,148
26 Ad}usnmamsmeHequity_______._"‘_.__ .
.27 Lesscostoftreaswrystock ... ) ] ) { _) ~
28 ‘Total lishilities and shareholders' equity . 5392 ,4B6 382,724
Note: The corporation is not # raquired to ::ornplete Scharivles M-1 and M=2 if the total agsets ui hne 15, col. {d) of Schegule L are less than $25,000. -
Schedule M-1 Reconciliation of Incomé (Loss) per Books With income per Return (See page 20 of instructions.) i
1 Netincome (ioss) per books vaenn =B,284{7 mcome recorded on books this year not, '

Federst income x| 2,038 included n this ramm (ilemize):
Tax-exarnpt
Inzarest &

2

3 Excess of capital losses over pl&zl gains

4  Income subject to tax not recorced on books
thas vear {itlemze)

8
5 Expenses recarded on books this year not
deducted on this relrn (termiza)! a
a Daprecistion b
b Conirbutions
CAEYOVEr

€ Travel and
- enign@inment |

BT S e R Sls Addlme-'r"a“ffs e eierirrneaens -

§ Add Enes 1 through 5 -6 ,247140 ingome {ling 8. naae 13ine 6 lesg fine 9 -5, 243
Schedule M-2 Analysis of Unappropr:atad Retained Earnings per Books {Line 25, SChedula L)

1 Balznce atbeginning of year ... 71,433 5 Distributions:’ a Cash’ .

2 Netincoms {lossyperbooks ... ...... -8,284 b Stock ierannn

3 Other inoreases (itemize):

¢ Onher decreases (itemize)
7 AddlinesS5and B

R L L LT T S B et S R L A an = =

& Add fines. 1 2oand 3., 23,1488 _Balance at end of year fline 4 less ling ¥) 3,149

T AL R F R

DAA ‘ . Form 1120 (zoon;
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Fommn 7TJD4 . ' ' . . n ' . : . I
(Reav. Oeapber 2000) Application for Automatic Extension of Time |

Te File Corporation Income Tax Retirn SMB N, S5z

Dmpanment of tho Treﬂ:ury

Imernal Revents SHTvi _ i ,

Name of cotporaion : ' | Employer igentfication number
RADIO METRIX, INC. ' _ ) 65-0345382

Numbar, strest, and yoom or aute no. §fz P.O. mnmuwdamwmsum et nstructions,)
4400 INDEPZNDEHCE COURT

Glty or town, state, and ZIP cade

_SaRASOTR FI, 34234
Check of retum o be fed, h T o
Form 990-C Form 1420FSC Form 1120-PC B Fomm 11208
Form 1120 Form 1120-H Form 1120-POL Fom 1120-SF
Formm 3320-A Farm 1120-!. Fortn 1120-RET
Fomn 1120-F Farm "l‘lZD-NO Fomn 1120-RIC
® Fomm 1120-F flams:  Check here if the foreign corporation does not rraintain an office nr placa of buiness in the
United States . e rl

1 Reguest for Automane Extensian (see instructions) C S
a Extension date, | ;equest an autarmatic 6-month {er, far centain corporations, 3-month) extension of tirne
onfl _ B/17/01 o flie tie income tax retum of the comporation named above for » X calendar
year20 00 or ¥ D tax year beginning | C...... , andending '
b Short taxyaa:. If this tax year is for less than 12 momhs check meason: )
Inifial retum l_] Final retem ' ﬂ Change in aecounting peried ﬂ Consolicated retm 1o be fled
2 Affiliated group mambers (sse insouctions). If this application aiso covers subsidiaries to be included in a consoikiatad
ratuim, provide the follow:nq information;

tamo and acdress of gach membar of the affiliared g_roup  Empigyer identification number Tax pericd

© Tortstive 13 (SR TRSEUGONS) - ove s oo eesoeesss e s eeesmneneeeanae e srrgemnnnesens | o
4 Payments and refundabile credits: (see msn'ur.tlon'q i s '
a Overpayment credited from prioryear |} 42
b Estimated tax payments for the tax year | 40 ’
¢ Less refund for the tzx year applied”

foron Forma46s ... . 4c_ Bal 4
& Credit for'tax pazd o i drsiated capital gains (Form 2439) ..., | %
f Crocit for Federal tax on fugls (FORM4T38) ||| euieeceeenceeceeeasnsae s, o : ,
5 Teta, Ade bnws 4d through 4f (66 10353 L L ieeee e OO RO . L .
8 Bax:ncs dua. Subtract ine § from fine 3. Depesit this amount using the Eiac:ronlc Federal o

Tax Pavment Svstem (EFTPS) or with » Federai Tax Denosit : {FTD) Coupon {zee nstrucens) ... s 3 C B

Signaturs. Under perrattlas of perury, 1 doczame thatl hava Deen autmn:ad by e abovesnamed Eorpostion 16 Make Win npphcaum and B the beat of my kndwisdage

20 belig!, the Aatemant made are toe, bots, 1
U O i A _-3/,'/0/7/5‘/

(S:qm!.ura of officar or agent} _ (Mo}

Far Papetwork Radurction Act Notice, ses lnstructions., o ’ o ; T Fomn 7004 (Rev, 10-2000)
DAA




1 2-BA~2PR1 1:16FM FROM
10058 Radio Mefrix, inc. ’
£5-0345382 Federal Statements
FYE: 12/31/2000

Statement 1 - Form 1420, Page 1, Line 26 - Other Deductions

____Descripfion o ___Amount )
BANK CHARGES $ o5
PROFESSIONAL FEES : 1,720
TRAVEL B ) .. ..150
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COST 25,000
TOTAL -$___ 26,965
Staterment 2- Form 1120, Page 4, Schedule L, Line & - Other Current Assets
s ' Beginning End
Description o of Year of Year
* SUBSCRIPTIONS RECEIVABLE $ . .o B0O . § © '500
LOAN RECEIVABLE - ROTH ) - 6,500
ToTAL ‘ , $ 500 = 7,000
Staternent 3 - Form 1120, Page 4, Schedule L_Line 14 - Other Assets .
Beginning ‘ End
Descripfion ' of Year o of Year
DEPOSIT : S $ - 1,000 $ 1,000
NOTE RECEIVABLE - SMART GATE ... - 33p,300 , 330,500
DUE “FROM SMART GATE ‘ : 1,515 :
INTEREST RECEIVABLE : 50,5623 35,577
TOTAL - , . S8 383,638 5 387,077
Statement 4 - Form 1120, Page 4, Schedule L, Line 18 - Other Current [iabilities
Beginning S End
Description . ___otYear 7 of Year _
DUE TO DUFFEY & DOLAN - 6,900 .- £,900
TOTAL S - £,900 g 6,900

Statement 5 - Form 1120, Page 4. Schedule M-1. Line 5 - Expenses on Books Not bn Retumn

_Description Amount
PENALTY 5 5
TCTAL 8 : 5 -

1-5




12-p4—20@1 1:17PM  FROM P18

10059 Radic Metrix, Inc.

65-0345382 - . - Federal Asset Report
FYE: 12/31/2000 . Regular Depreciation
‘ " Date Bus :
Asset ___Desuription in Service  Cost % 179 _ Basis  PerGonv Meth Prior Current
Prior, %Ag_jRS: N ‘ '
1 Compuer Equipment 531797 13,999 X 0 5 HY200DB 13,999 0
13,993 ¢ 13,998 0
Grand Torals 13,599 . 0 13,999 0
Less: Dispositions 0 L 0 0
Net Grand Totals 13,999 ‘ 0 13,992 o
. —_———e——— AT E— -




12-p4-20@1 1:17PM  FROM | , B 11

10055 Radio Metrix, Inc.
55-0345382 SR Federal Statements
FYE: 12/31/2000 '

Schedule L - Loans to Sharehoiders

. Beginning End
Description _ -~ ___ofYear 7 of Year
SEAREHOLDER LOAN -~ STEVE 3 §,249 5 _ 8,249
TOTAL : $ B,249 $ ) B,249

— —

Schedute L -1 oans f.rorﬁ étocl&iolaér‘s

‘ Beginning End
Description of Year , of Year
 SHAREHOLDER LOAN - DUFFEY ' s "TTg,1s9 ‘8 7" 8,158
SHAREHOLDER LOAN - ROTH 1, eo_q

TOTAL 5 -~ 9,159 & . 8,159




Schedule 2.10

Material Contracts
See Exhibits “C” and “D”

and

The Attached List of Contracts




Schedule 2.10
List of Material Contracts

Net Profit Royalty Letter Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and Pete Lefferson dated
September 23, 1993 as amended by Letter Agreement dated December 1, 1994 (“Lefferson
Rovyaliy Acreement”)

Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and Carl Burnett dated October 13, 1996 (“Burnett
Agreement”)

The Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and Namaqua Limited Partnership
(“Namaqua™) dated December 13, 1993 (“Namaqua Agreement”), and related Security
Agreement (*Namaqua Security Agreement™).

Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and Robert Wilson dated March 18, 1992 (“Wilson
Agreement”).

License Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and SDR Metro Inc. dated March 14, 1992
and Amendment to License Agreement dated February 14, 1997 and May 26, 1998,

Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc., SDR Metro Inc. and Brent Simon dated October 9,
2000 re: patent purchase; and Extension Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc., SDR
Metro Inc. and Brent Simon dated September 5, 2001.

Closing Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc., SDR Metro Inc. and Brent Simon dated
Jamary 8, 2002,

Promissory Note to SDR Metro Iné. dated January 8, 2002,

Security Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and SDR Metro Inc. dated January 8,
2002; UCC-1 filed in Florida Secured Tramsaction Registry; confirmation of Security
Interest filed with Patent and Trademark Office.

Remedy Upon Default Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and SDR Metro Inc. dated
January 8, 2002.

Consulting Agreement Memo re: Brent Simon dated August 28, 2000.

Assignment of License Agreement from SDR Metro Inc. to Radio Metrix Inc. dated
January 8, 2002.

Secured Promissory Note from Radio Metrix to SmartGate Inc. dated January 8, 2002.
Security Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and SmartGate Inc. dated January 8, 2002.

Assignment of Right of Redemption Agreement from Radio Metrix Inc. to SmartGate Inc.
dated January 8, 2002.

Subhcense Letter Agreement between Radio Metrix Inc. and SmartGate Inc. dated January
8, 2002. ,




Schedule 2.13
Undisclosed Liabilities

None




Schedule 2.14
RadioMetrix Tax Matters

None




Schedﬁle 2.20
Indebtedness and Accounts Payable

$75,000 payable to Stephen A. Michael in connection with services rendered. *
$100,000 payable to Duffey & Dolan, P.A. for services rendered. *
Costs and expenses associated with this Agreement or the Closing thereof.

Robert T. Roth, a stockholder and member of management of RadioMetrix, Inc. owes
RadioMetrix $7,500 plus interest at 8.5% from February 16, 2000. At Closing, this Promissory
Note will be deemed canceiled by RadioMetrix, terminating the obligation of Mr. Roth.

Debts set forth in the promissory notes and agreements listed in Schedule 2.10 including,
but nmot limited to, the obligations under the Namaqua Agreement which are estimated at
approximately $50,000, and the potential obligations under the Wilson Agreement which may be
due should the unilateral termination of the Wilson Agreement not be legally effective.

* Amounts due reflect accruals for services rendered. Stephen A. Michael, Samuel S.
Duffey and Duffey & Dolan, P.A. have waived any entitlement to any additional consideration,
receivable or entitlement from RadioMetrix as otherwise disclosed herein. Estoppel Certificates
will be issued by all parties at Closing as requested by SmartGate. Both Mr. Michael and Duffey
& Dolan, P.A. agree that the account payable shall remain unpaid and is contingent upon such
time as the Company has received an aggregate of $2,000,000 in additional capital subsequent to
the Closing of this Agreement.




Schedule 2.24
Employee Benefit Plans

None




Schedule 3.5

SmartGate Consents and Approvals

e SmartGate, Inc.’s Board of Directors

e SmartGate/RadioMetrix Acquisition
Corp.’s Board of Directors and Sole
Shareholder, SmartGate, Inc.

e Article of Merger Filing with Secretary of
State of Florida and Nevada




Schedule 3.8

SmartGate Financial Statements




-

S " SmartGate |
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2001

1-Sep -
ASSETS R
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
10500 - First Union Checking 308,555.48
10550 - Regions Bank Checking 7740
10610 - First Unfon Money Market Ac 1,153,926.61
10600 - Petty Cash ) 5485
Total Checking/Savings 1,462,614.15
Accounts Recelvabie
11000 - Accounts Receivable 24,083.59
Total Accounts Receivable 24, 083.58
Other Current Assets
12100 - N/R SGLC Loan 0.00
13100 - inventory Asset-Finished 28,553.20
13200 - Inventory Asset-Parts B8E,232.39
14000 - N/R-STannehill ' ‘ 2,000.00
14050 - N/R-CParks ‘ 3,500.00
Total Other Current Assets 122,285,589
Total Current Assets 1,608,983.33 -
Fixed Assets
15000 - Furniture & Fixtures 18,317.46
15050 - Computer Equpmt & Software 5554224
15100 - Shop Equipment : 452627
15150 - Office Equipment ' ' 3,369.62 - . ‘ )
15400 - Leasehold improvements 4,055.44 o
17000 - Accum Depreciation- Furniture {2,971.61) . '
17050 - Accum Depreciation - Comptr Eqgt (14,171.14)
- 17100 - Accum Depreciation-Shop Equpm . {4,798.06)
17150 - Accum Depreciation -Off Equpmt . (2,404.19)
17400 - Accum Depreciation -Leasehold (785.00)
Total Fixed Assets - ) 51,701.03
Other Assets )
15000 - Deposits . 8,783.60
19100 - Investment in SmartGate LC 0.00
Total Other Assets : 9,783 .60
i TOTAL ASSETS 1,680,467.96 7
LIABILITIES & EQUITY .
Liabilities : -
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payabie
20000 - Accounts Payable 74,184.12

Unaudiled - Prepared for Intemal Managemeni Use
Does no! include wswval and cusiomary disclosures in notes required by General Accepted Accounling Principles
. Page1of2

N




SmartGate
Consolidated Balance Sheet
' : As of Septemnber 30, 2001

1-Sep
Total Accounts Payable 74,184.12
Other Current Liabififies ‘ .
. 23000 - Accrued Expences . 0.00
" 23025 - Accrued interest Payable 1,185.78
23050 - Accrued Interest Payabile 58,258.20 .
23400 - Payroll Liabilities 13,7656.94
23500 - FUTA Tax Payable 16264
23700 - SUTA Tax;ayable 80B.86 | ' t .
27800 - NIP-HRWFLP 29,545 24
28000 - Affiliated Co. Advances 6,121.35
24000 - Accrued Liabilities-Audit 4,000.00
24100 - Accrued Liabilifies-Other B,794.88
27000 - Bonus Payabie 120,000.00
27100 - Accrued Salaries 4G,720.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 284,453.89
Total Current Liabiiﬁies 358,648.01"
Long Term Liabilities
25000 - Regions LOC ‘ 98,402 00
26000 - Due to Radio Metrix ’ {2,765.00)
Z7000 - N/P-RMI 330,500.00
27850 - N/P-SGI 0.00
28800 - Due to Employees (10,000.00)
Total Long Term Liabilities 416,137.00
Total Liabilities 774,78501
Equity oL
38000 - Opening Bal Equity 0.00
38000 - Retained Earnings (1,829,175.81)
Net Income ' _ {1,410,075.39)
39500 - CS Par Value . 11,555.00
35600 - Paid In Capital 5,118,379.15
359700 - Stock SubscRec {585,000.00) B
Total Equity ] . . B05,652.85
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,680,467.96 X L . —

Unaudiled - Prepared for Infernal Management Use

Does nat include wsual end customary disclosures in noles 1equired by General Accepled Accounting Principles
' ‘ Page 2 of 2




SmartGate
Consolidated Profit Loss
Qtr and YTD Comparison
SEPTEMBER 2001

Sep 01 Qtr 3 Jan'01 - Sep '01
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income : . ) .

40000 - Sales ' 10,828,50 ' 32,795.48 88,588.87
Total Income : 10,828.50 32,796.48 . BB,588.87
Cost of Goods Sold .

50000 - Cost of Goods Sold 4338897 12,03262 30,424.30

57000 - COGS-Labor 1,606.25 5493.75 14,987.20

57500 - Shipping & Handling 635.96, " 826,61 3,441 54
Total COGS 6,581.18 18,352.98 48,853.04

N Gross Profit 4,247.32 14,443.50 38,735.83
Expense ‘

60100 - Alarm Expense 117.70 . 663.11 1,436.40

60200 - Depreciation Expense 750.00 '2,250.00 §,750.00

60500 - Advertising Expense 18,020 55 44,286.42 B3,272.01

60700 - Bad Debt Expense 0.00 0.00 583.48

60800 - Bank Service Charges 42.00 609,95 567.98

§1000 - Cleaning & Mainténance 65.23 278.16 B29.44

61150 - Compensation Expense 5,080.00 15,240.00 45,720.00

51250 - Discounts 17.12 24.20 © 7 48200

€1300 - Dues and Subscriptions 0.00 140.00 2,473.93

61500 - Education Expense ) 0.00 0.00 . C.00

651600 - Gifts 185.00 185.00 185.00 -

61800 - Insurance ' 8,734.30 29,826.80 65,026.82

62200 - Interest Exp-Regions 615.72 2,208.20 ° | 8537.04

62225 - interest Expense-HRW © 163,91 50265 . 1.656.92

62250 - interest Expense-RMI : . 3,100.00 6,200.00 18,000.00

2300 - Licenses and Permits ' 3750 37.50 . 17250

62350 - Printing and Repl'-uduction ' : 407.60 3,124.33 5,242,584

62440 - Freight & Delivery (In) 12667 483.45 - B42.18

62500 - Professional-Management Fees : 544.43 1,633.29 4,057.44

62550 - Prafessional-Patent Legal Fees 11,354.64 . 30,060.28 38,718.39

€2600 - Professional-Accounting 0.00 0.00 | 27,687.00

62650 - Professional-Consulting 17,545.00 55,232.03 . 179,618.10

62700 - Rent or Lease Expense ' £,336.68 16,010.07 44,588.36

62750 - Repairs-Buiiding 0.00 ‘0.00 3,286.47

62800 - Repairs-Office Equipment 0.00 166.86 889.87"

63006 - Postage and Delivery 241,50 1,.315.18 7,027.19

63540 - T&E-Travel . 2,544 58 839 653.48 © 171,82204

63550 - T&E-Meals & Enterfainment 94,89 1,403.15 11,179.53

B4000 - Telephone 2,143.16 5,213.63 15,640.71

64050 - Telephone-JSDN - 0.00 0.00 2,678.65

654500 - Gas and Electric 831.83 2,240.17 435271

64550 - Trash & Water 80.16 288.11 E08.61

. Unaudiled - Prepared for iniemal Management Use

Does not include usual and customary disclosures in noles fequired by General Accepted Accaunting Principles
Page 1 of 2




. SmartGate o
Consolidated Profit Loss
Qtr and YTD Comparison .
SEPTEMBER 2001

Sep ‘01 Qtr 3 Jan'lt - Sep "D

64500 - Office Expense & Supplies 4,460.14 16,756.20 ,31,717.53
64650 - Coffee & Water Sve ' 137.01 4,458.06 1,464.78
85700 - Salary-Offices R&D/MTg 3252345 56,811.35 258,982.20
65800 - Salary-Commissions ) , 451 84 1,767.80 512268
66000 - R&D/Shop Expenses . 86380 | 488613 - 10,983.58
66100 - R&D Products & Materialis 2,0i6.08 5,860.84 34,564.34
662040 - Reference Materials 0.00 118,78 | 2,208.25 -
68000 - Marketing & Trade Shows ' 51,491.84 86,757.00 168,770.18
65800 - Officer Payrolit Expense 19,654.96 59,138.91 171,627 20
68100 - Taxes-Payroll 2,645,45 7.861.58 21,350.54
68150 - Taxes-Payroti Unemployment Exp. 324.37 1,043.51 5,983.74
68200 - Taxes-Property " 0.00 0.00 0.00
68300 - Taxes-Penalties & Interest 0.00 0.00 438.20
68350 - EA : T . D00 900.00
Total Expense 154,748.20 B808,B60.28 1,468,477.89
Net Ordinary Loss ' (190,500.88) {594,416.79) (1,428,742.06)
Other income/Expense
Other income
70160 - Interest income 2518.B4 1 D.‘ISS.EE - 18,666.67
Net Less . (137,581.04) {5B4,257.14) {1,410,075.2%)

Unaudited - Prepared for Internal Managemen! Use

Does not include usual ang customary disclosures in notes Tequired by General Accepted Accounting Principles
. Page 2 of 2
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(A DEVELOPM.ENI" STAGE ENTERPRISE)

March 31, 1999 and 2000




CONTENTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 1
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Con.:llsolidated Balance Sheets | ' ' . o 2

Consolidated Stazements of Operations ‘ | 3

Consolidazed Statement of Stockholders’ Equity 4

- Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - s

~ Notes 1o Consolidared Financial Stat:nﬁcnts . - 6




Accountants an;i ' ’ G‘I'aﬂt Thomt()ﬂ :‘B

Management Consultants g
GRANT THORNTON LLP :

The US Memmber Firm of
Grant Thornton International

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

Board of Directors and Stockholders
SrnartGate, Inc.

We have audited the consolidared bzlance sheets of SmartGate, Inc. (a development stage enterprise) as of
March 31, 1999 and 2000 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for each of the two years ended March 31, 2000 and the period February 1997 {inception)
through March 31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibiliry of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. :

We conducted our andits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepred in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstarement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

“evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial starements. An audir also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating rhe overall financial statement presentarion. We believe thar our adits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. ' :

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of SmartGare, Inc. as of March 31, 1999 and 2000 and the consolidated
results of operations and cash flows for each of the two years ended March 31, 2000 and the period
February 1997 (inception) through March 31, 2000 in conformity with accounting principles geperally
accepted in the United States. _ :

Corent Thomekon LLP

Tampa, Florida
April 21, 2000

Suitz 3850 ) - - - R
101 E. Kennedy Blvd, :

Tampa, FL 33602-5154 T

Tel: 813 229-7201 . . -

Fax: 813 223-3015




Current assets:

SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

‘ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounrts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assers

Total current assets

Furnirure, fixtures and equipmenr, ner

Other assets

Total assers

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities: '
Accounts payable, trade
Accrued expenses .
Current portion of notes payable
Due 1o related party

Total current liabilities

Line of credit
Notes payable

Due to employees .

Stockholders’ equity {deficir):

Common stock; 25,000,000 shares authorized ($.001 par value),

- 6,670,808 and 10,410,481 shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital .
Stock subscriptions receivable o
Deficir accumulated during the development stage

Total stockholders’ equiry (deficir)

Toral hiabilities and stockholders’ equiry (deficit) |

i

- March 31,
1999 2000
$142,154 $ 843,017
9,984 . 6,642
14,013 140,528
- 2,000
166,151 992 187
8,403 35,910
1,345 2,010
$.175.899  $.1.036.107
§ 21,408 $ 36,221
32,409 137,302
, - 25,000
8,886 6,121
62,703 204,644
- 116,247
355,500 330,500
124,625 146,150
6,671 10,410
227,219 2,606,907
. - (985,000) .
(600.,819)  (1,393.751)
(366.929) _238.566
$.1.036.107

$175.899

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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. SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF QPERATIONS
February 17,
1997
. (Inception)
Through
Marchk 31,
1999 2000 2000
Nert sales | . $ 30,540 $ 38070 § 77,762
Cost of goods sold . 15,262 14,379 31,722 _
Gross profit ’ ] 15,278 23,691 46,040
Research and development costs : 190,656 538,135 1,031,562
Selling, general and administrative expenses 53.602 248.854  __ 348,188
Loss from operations - (228,980) ~ (763,298)  (1,333,710)
Interest expense ' 20,632 _ _29.634 60.041.
Ner loss . . ‘ - $(249.612) ${792.937) $(1.393,751)
Net loss per common share: - '
Basic and diluted §___(0o4 S___ (019

Weighted average common stock shares outstanding -

basic and diluted 6,159.294 56.853.011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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SMARTGATE, INC. | | B
(A Development Stage Enterprise) ' :

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

- February 17,
1997
(inception)
- ‘ through
Year Ended March 31, March 31,
1999 2000 2000

Cash flows from operaring activities: o -
Ner loss $(249,612) S (792,932) $(1,393,751)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in D '
operating activities:

Depreciation . 2,449 . 5,572 2,581 |
Common stock exchanged for rent ' - 64,868 64,868
Changes in operating assets and habiliries . ' o '
Accounts receivable (8,948) 3,342 (6,642)
Inventories 19.267  (126,515)  (140,528)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 185 - (8,665 . (10,010}
Accounts payable ' 1,511 14,813 36,221
Accrued expenses o : 16,181 102,128 143,423 |
Due to employees _ 102,125 . __21.525 146,150
Ner cash used in operating activities (116,842)  (715,864) (1,150,688} -
Cash flows from investing activities: ' ' 7
Purchases of furniture, fixtures and eqmpment (703) (33.079) (45.491)
Net cash used in investing activities (703) (33,079) (45,491)
Cash flows from financing activities: ' ‘
Proceeds from line of credit - 116,247 116,247 ~
Proceeds from notes payable , 25,000 - 355,500
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net o 233,890 1,103,559 1,337,449
Advanced funds associated with merger ‘ - 230,000 230:000 .
Net cash provided by financing activities 258,890 1,449,806 2,039,196
Net increase in cash . 141,345 700,863 843,017
Cash at beginning of period ’ 809 142,154 -
Cash at end of period . $142,154 $_843.017 §_845.017

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for interest
Cash paid dunng the year for income taxes

. 0§ 11,400 $__ 11400
.5 .8 .

& i

The accompanying notes are an integral past of these statements.
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SMARTGATE, INC. .
{A Development Stage LEnterprise)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

SmartGate, Inc. (“the Company”) is a development stage enterprise thar incorporates safery system
rechnology and products into automated closure devices, such as parking gates, sliding gates, overhead
garage doors and commercial overhead doors. The Company has not fully implemented its sales and
markering plan and has therefore not generared significant revenue since its inception in 1997. The
Company is related through common ownership to Radio Metrix, Inc. (RMI), which owns the proprietary
rights to the underlying safery system. : .

NOTE B ~ BUSINESS COMBINATION

Effective February 9, 2000, the Company acquired all of the membership units of SmartGare L.C. in
exchange (the Exchange) for approximarely 7,744,000 shares of common stock, representing 74% of the
Company’s common stock outstanding at that time. Prior to the Exchange, SmartGate, Inc. (a privately
held company formed in February 1998) had substantially no operations. For accounting purposes, the
Exchange was recorded as a reverse acquisition, with SmartGate L.C. as the accounting acquirer. Asa
result, the historical financial information presented prior to the Exchange is solely that of SmartGare L.C.

" The operating results of SmartGate, Inc. are combined with those of SmartGare L.C. following the
Exchange.

The stockholders’ equity presented prior to the Exchange represents the number of the Company’s shares

of common stock exchanged for shares of SmartGare L.C. in connection with the Exchange. The
Company’s net assers were recognized as of the Exchange date at historical cost. '

NOTE C - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN_G POLICIES
Principles of Comnsolidation
The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2000 include the accounts of SmarcGare, Inc. and its

wholly owned subsidiary, SmartGate L.C. All intercompany balances and transacrions have been
eliminated. .

Use of Estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformiry with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States, management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and labilities and disclosures of contingent assers and liabilities ar the date of the
financial staternents, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expense during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimares.




SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

NOTE C - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Cash and cash equivalents '

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are due primarily from companies in the gate manufacturing industry located
throughout the United States. Credit is extended based on an evaluation of the customers’ financial
condirion and, generally, collareral is not required. Bad debts have not been significant and there are no
significant concentrations of credit risk related to accounts receivable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of costor marker. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. '

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Furnirure, fixtures, and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
‘principally five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease or their estimated
useful lives, whichever is shorter. Accumulated depreciation and amortization was $9,581 and $4,009 at
March 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. During 2000, the Company purchased furniture from a
shareholder at a cost of $7,500. Accelerated.methods are used for tax depreciation.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognized as revenue upon shipment of product.

Research and Dc{relopment Costs

Research and development costs consist of direct and indirect costs that are clearly associared with the
development of the safety sensor device. These costs are expensed as incurred. :

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. During the years ended March 31, 1999 and 2000,
advertising expense was $0 and $13,400, respectively.




SMARTCATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

.NOTE C - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Incomé Taxes |

The Company elected to be taxed as a partnership under the Internal Revenue Code for periods prior to
the Exchange. Therefore, the stockholders reported income, deductions, and certain credits on their
individual income tax returns. Following the Exchange, the Company adopted Statemens of Financial
Accounring Standards (SEAS) No. 109, Accounting for Incorne Taxes. )

Financial Instraments

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts |
payable, notes payable and longterm debt. The carrying amounts of these financial instruments
approximarte their fair value, due to the short-term nature of these items.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets whenever adverse events or changes in
business climate indicate that the expected undiscounted future cash flows from the related asser may be
less than previously anticipated. ¥ the ner book value of the related asset exceeds the undiscounted furure
cash flows of the asser, the carrying amount would be reduced 1o the present value of its expected future
cash flows and an impairment loss would be recognized. There have been no impairment losses in any of
. the periods presented. '

Earnings per common share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are compured based on the weighted average number of common
stock outstanding during the period. Common stock equivalents are not considered in the calcularion of
dilured earnings per share for the periods presented because their effect would be anti-dilutive. -

Stock Based Compensation

The Company presents cnly the disclosure provisions of SFAS No 123, Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation as it relates to stock options granted to employees. The Company applies Accounring
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and related inrerprerations, in
measuring compensation for stock options granted. The Company recognizes the fair value of options
granted to non-employees when granted.




- SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

NOTE D - INVENTORIES | SR R

Inventories consist of the following:

March 31,
1999 2000
Finished goods . C $ 4,900 § 19,800
Work in process and raw materials ‘ 9.113 120728
514,013 $140.528
NOTE E - ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses consist of the following:
. © 1999 __ 2000
Accrued compensation ' : | : $ - $ 64,939
Accrued interest : 30,468 55,700
.Other accrued expenses ' 1,941 16,663

$32.409 $137.302

" NOTEF - LINE OF CREDIT

‘The line of credit ar March 31, 2000 conststs of a $150,000 secured working capital line of credit with 2
bank maturingon April 15, 2001. Interest is payable monthly at prime plus one percent, or approximarely
10.0% at March 31, 2000. Approximately $34,000 is available for borrowing under the line of credit as of
March 31, 2000. The line of credit may only be used to purchase inventory and 2ll inventory is pledged as
securiry. ‘




SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

NOTE G - NOTES PAYABLE
Notes payable consist of the }’ollowing at March 31,

1999 2000

Notes payable to RMI, due in installments from -
Februvary 21, 2007 through March 11, 2008, together with o ,
interest at 6% compounded annually $330,500 .. $330,500
Note payable, due March 31, 2001, together with interest at _ . ,
. prime compounded annually 25,000 . 25,000
355,500 355,500
Less current marturities ' ' e 25,000

$323.500 $230.500
At March 31, 2000, aggregate maturities of notes payable are as follows:

Year ending March 31,

2001 ' $ 25,000

2002 ‘ ' -

2003 : - -

2004 ' -

2005 . . : o ) T -

"Thereafter ) 330,500
$355.500 -

NOTE H - DUE TO EMPLOYEES

' Due 1o employees consists of deferred payments of base compensation payable to two principal
shareholders. The amounts payable are non-interest bearing and are due April 30, 2001.
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» SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Developmem Stage Enterprise}

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FH\IANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

NOTElI - LOSS'PER SHARE T

The following table sets forth the computarion of basic and diluted net loss per share:

1999 2000

Numerator: o '

Net loss ‘ 7 ' $.(249.612) $_(792.932)
Denominator: ' ) :

For basic loss per share - weighted average shares - 6,159,294 6,853,011

Effect of dilurive securmes stock options | : - -

For diluted loss per share . 9.29 6.853.011
Nezt loss per common share - basic ’ $ Q04 S__{012)
Net loss per common share - diluted ‘ $___ 004 s__(012)

Options to purchase 1,385,092 and 460,878 shares of common stock as of March 31, 1999 and 2000 are
not considered in the calculation of diluted loss per share because the effect would be anti-dilutive.

NOTE] - COMMON STOCK OPTIONS

 On March 9, 1999, the Company granted to employees optlons to purchase 924 214 shares of the

Company’s common stock a1 an exercise price of approximarely $1.07 per share. The Company applieda
minimum value method to value the stock options. Because the present value of the exercise price
exceeded the estimated marker price of the common stock ar the grant date, no value was assigned o the
stock options. All of the stock options were exercised on December 29, 1999 in exchange for promissory
notes with a term of five years, reflecred as stock subscriptions receivable of $985,000 as of March 31,

2000. The promissory notes may be re-paid either in cash or through the tender of stock by the employcc
to the Company. No employee stock options are outstanding as of March 31, 2000. :

During March 1999, the Company granted options to purchase 460,878 shares 16 nog-employees at an
' exercise price of approximately $1.07 per share. No significant services were associated with these grants
and the present value of the exercise price exceeded the estimated market price of the cornmon stock at
the grant date. Therefore, no value was assigned to the stock opticns. The stock options were exercisable
on the grant date and substantially all of these stock options expire on December 31, 2001.

11
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SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES |
Operating Leases

The Company leases its manufacturmg and office space under an operating lease agreernent from a
shareholder. The lease agreement expires on March 23, 2001. The lezse agreement allows for payment of
rent in either cash or shares of the Company’s common stock. The lease alsc provides the Company with
an option 1o purchase the property on March 31, 2001 for $725, 000. Furure minimum. lease paymenzts for
the operating lease are as follows:

Year Ending March 31 : o : L
2001 - . $52,956 : ' c- s

Total related party rent expense dunng the years ended March 31,1999 and 2000 amounted zo $30,980
and $64,868, respectively.

Legal and Other Matters

The Company is, from time to time, subject to litigation related 1o claims arising our of its operations in ;
the ordinary course of business. The Company believes that no such claims should have a marerial :
adverse impact on 115 financial condirtion or results of operations. '

NOTEL-RELATED PARTY TRANSKCTfONS , .
. Pateﬁt License

The Company is party to a sublicense agreemert Wn:h RMI for the proprietary safery technology used m -
the Company’s products. The sublicense agreement contains the same financial termos and conditions
included in the primary License agreement berween RMI and an unrelated third-party entity. Those terms
provide for the payment of réyalties calcilated based on an adjusted earnings amount. Due to the losses
incurred since inceprion of the Company, no payments have been required under the license agreemensz.

Employment agreements

Effective February 1999, the Company has enrered into five-year employment agreements with two of its
principal shareholders. Each of these agreements provides for the payment of an annual salary of
$120,000 and other fringe benefits, sub]ect to increases based upon artainment of certain operaring goals.

Toral compensation expense under these employment agreements, bonus plans, and other previous
arrangements was approximately $108,000 and $361,000. in 1999 and 2000, respectively. Each
employrnent agreerpent also provides for cithera fully paid life insurance policy that will yield a $2,000,000
death benefit or continued base compensation payable for five years following the death of either officer.

12




SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

NQOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

NOTE L - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - Continued

Yegal and Consulting Expenses

The Company paid legal and'c-cnnsulting fees totaling $6,000 and $32,000 in the years ended March 31,
1999 and 2000, respectively, 1o a law firm of which one of the partners 1s a principal shareholder.

‘Stock Repurchase Agreement

In connection with the Exchange, the Company has the right to repurchase shares of its common stock
from acerzain shareholder at par value. The number of shares subject to this right, however, depends on
this shareholder’s prospective performance levels related to the placement of the Company’s commeon
stock. The number of shares actually subject to repurchase, therefore, is not currently determinable.
However, management believes that the number of shares ult:lma.tely repurchased, if any, will be
immaterial.

NOTEM - INCOME TAXES

Historical Income Taxes -

Deferred taxes were recorded for all existing temporary differences in the Company’s assets and liabilities
basis for income and financial reporting purposes at the date of conversion to a C Corporzuion, which
resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax asset of approximately $285,000. Due to the valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets, as noted below, there was no net deferred tax benefit or expense for the
year snded March 31, 2000.

Reconczlza.non of the federal statutory income tax rate of 34.0% to the effgctive income tax rate for the
year ended March 31, 2000 is as foﬂows L

Federal statutory income TaX rate SRR - (34.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benEflT. ' (3.5
Ner loss allocared to the partnership period 21.7
Non-deductible employee compensation & 9.5

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance ‘ 6.3

- 4
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SMARTGATE, INC.
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999 and 2000

NOTE M - INCOME TAXES - Continiied
Deferred tax asset components were as follows as of March 31, 2000:

Deferred tax assets:

Compensation payable $ 77,306
Net operaring loss R o . 27,924
Basis difference for C Corporation conversion 230,392
| 335,627
Less valuation allowance . = ' (335.622)
Net deferred income taxes - : - S -

* The deferred tax valuation allowance was determined based on the development stage status of the
Company and the historical losses incurred since inception. ' '

Pro forma Income Taxes

In conjunction with the Exchange, the Company terminared its partnership status. For pro forma
purposes, the Company recognized a Federal and State income tax benefit (net of Federal rax benefir)
using starutory rates of 34% and 3.5%, respectively, for the period February 17, 1997 (inception) through
‘the date of'the Exchange. For pro forma income tax purposes the deferred tax asset associated with

SmartGare L.C.’s cumulative net operating losses in each period presented is offset by a valuation -

allowance. Accordingly, no pro forma income taxes zre presented.
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Schedule 7(b)

$500,000 Promissory Note




Form of $500,000 Note

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES OR “BLUE SKY>
LAWS, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, -
PLEDGED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO
THE PROVISIONS OF SUCH ACT AND BLUE SKY LAWS OR AN EXEMPTION
THEREFROM IS AVAILABLE AS ESTABLISHED BY A WRITTEN OPINION OF
COUNSEL ACCEPTABLE TO THE MAKEXR.

SmartGate Inc.

PROMISSORY NOTE
$ R L . Sarasota, Florida
February _ ,2002 -

' FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, SmartGate Inc., a Nevada corporation (the
“Maker”), promises to pay to the order of (the “Payee”)
the principal sum of _ ($ . ) Dollars plus
interest in the amount specified below. The principal sum of
5 ) Dollars shall be due and payable in one installment on February __ , 2006.
During the first one hundred eighty (180) days, this Promissory Note shall bear interest at ten
{10%) percent per annum and said interest shall be paid every thirty (30) days on the last day of
each of the first six (6) thirty (30) day periods of the term of this Promissory Note, and thereafter,
the interest for the balance of the term of this Promissory Note shall be fifteen (15%) percent per

-annum and shall be paid every thirty (30) days on the last day of each thirty (30) day period for
the balance of the term of this Promissory Note.

Interést hereon shall be calculated on the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) day year
applied to the actual number of days elapsed until all accrued and unpaid interest is paid in full.
All payments of principal and interest hereon shall be payable in lawful currency of the United
States.

‘If any interest payment or the principal payment is not actually received by the Payee on
or before the due date, the Maker agrees to pay Payee a late charge equal to a lesser of eighteen
(18%) percent per annum or the highest lawful rate per annum, on the delinquent amount until
paid.

Prepayment of the principal of this Promissory Note is permitted, in whole or in part, at
any time, without premium or penalty of any kind.

This Promissory Note may not be changed orally, but only by an agreement in writing
signed by the parties against whom enforcement of any waiver, change, modification or
discharge is sought.

The holder of this Promissory Note and all successors thereof shall have all the rights of a
holder in due course as provided by the Florida Uniform Commercial Code and the other laws of
the state of Florida. Maker hereby waives demand, presentment, protest, notice of protest and/or
dishonor and all other notices or requirements that might otherwise be required by law. The
Maker promises to pay on demand all costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys' fees




and court costs, paid or incurred by Payee to ‘enforce this Promissory Note upon an Event of
Default (as defined below) hereunder.

The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default” under this
Promissory Note:

a. the failure of the Maker to make any payment when due under this Promissory Note;

b. the institution of proceedings by or against the Maker under any state insolvency
laws, federal bankruptcy law, or similar debtor relief laws then in effect.

Upon an Event of Default which has not been cured within ten (10) business days from
the date of written notice by Payee, Payee may, at Payee's option and without notice, declare all
principal and interest due under this Promissory Note to be due and payable immediately. Payee
may waive any default before or after it occurs and may restore this Promissory Note in full
effect without impairing the right to declare it due for a subsequent default.

SMARTGATE INC.

CORPORATE
SEAL : By:

Edmund C. King
Its: Chief Financial Officer and
Independent Committee Member




